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Independent Auditor's Report 

Honorable Robby Miller, Parish President and 
Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Council 

Tangipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Adverse and Unmodified Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Tangipahoa Parish Government (the "Parish"), as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Parish's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Adverse Opinion on Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units 

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse and Unmodified Opinions 
section of our report, the financial statements referred to above do not present fairly the financial position of the 
aggregate discretely presented component units of the Parish as of December 31, 2024, or the changes in financial 
position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Unmodified Opinions on Governmental Activities, Each Major Fund, and the Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Parish as 
of December 31, 2024, and the respective changes in fmancial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Adverse and Unmodified Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
the Parish, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating 
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our adverse and unmodified audit opinions. 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government 

,ilatter Giving Thse to Advewse Opinwn on Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units 

The financial statements do not include financial data for the Parish's legally separate component units. Accountmg 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require financial data for those component units to be 
reported with the financial data of the Pansh's primary government unless the Parish also issues financial statements 
for the financial reporting entity that include the financial data for its component units. The Parish has not issued such 
reporting entity financial statements. Because of this departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of Amenca. the assets, deferred outflows of resources. liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net 
position, revenues, and expenses of the ageregate discretely presented component units are not reasonably obtainable. 

Emphasis of Mauer — Change in Accounting Principle 

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2024, the Parish adopted new accounting guidance, GASB 
Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for thr design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial stateinents that are free 
front material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in thr aggegate. that raise substantial doubt ahout the Parish's ability to continue as a going concern for 
twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise 
suhstantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance hut is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accrpted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations. or the ovemde of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Audning Standards, 
we: 

• Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in thr tinancial statements. 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control rdel, ant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parish's 
internal control. Accordingly. no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentanon of the fmancial statements. 

• Conclude whether. in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial 
doubt about the Parish's ahility to continue as a going concern for a reasonahle period of time 

We are required to comrnunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit. significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related !natters that we identified during 
the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's Discussion and 
Analysis on pages 6 — 11: the Budgetary Comparison Schedules on pages 76 — 80; the Schedule of Changes in the 
Parish's Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on page 81; the Schedule of the Parish's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability (Asset) on page 82: and the Schedule of the Parish's Contribution on page 83 be presented to 
supplement the hasic financial statements. Such inforniation is the responsibility of management and, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Go‘ emmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the hasic financial statements in an appropriate operational. 
econonnc, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with audinng standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the inforniation for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic fmancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained (luring our 
audit of the basic tinancial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient e‘idence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

.cupplementmy Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Parish's hasic financial statements. The accompanying Financial Data Schedule — Balance Sheet: Financial Data 
Schedule - Revenues and Expenses, Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head; Justice 
System Funding Schedule — Receiving Entity; and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required hy Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, L.'nifirrin Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements fin. Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived front and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information 
has heen subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic tinancial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such informanon directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the Financial Data Schedule - Balance Sheet; Financial Data Schedule — Revenues and Expenses; Schedule of 
Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head; Justice System Funding Schedule — Receiving Entity; 
and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

3 



Tangipahoa Parish Government 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 20, 2025, on our 
consideration of the Parish's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parish's internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the Parish's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

wr.01, Liji j: 1 31 .  r  
t „id ilq,„4/3.0.e.L. 

James Lambert Riggs and Associates, Inc. 
Hammond, Louisiana 

June 20, 2025 
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Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31 2024 

Our discussion and analysis of the Tangipahoa Parish Government's (the "Parish- ) financial performance provides 
an overview of the Parish's financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, .2024, with comparisons to 
the prior year, where appropriate. 

Since Management's Discussion and Analysis (MIMA) is designed to focus on the current year's activities. 
resulting changes, and currently blown facts. please read it in conjunction with the Parish's financial statements, 
which begin on Exhibit A. 

Financial Highlights 

The Parish's net position from government activities increased by approxirnately $37.2 million as a result ot this 
year's operations 

Total cost of all of the Parish's programs was in excess of $71 million in 2024. 

Using this Annual Report 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Parish's basic financial statements. This 
annual report consists of a series of tinancial statements. The Parish's basic tinancial statements comprise three 
components: 1) government-wide financial statements. 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 
statements. This report also contains other supplenientary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (on Exhibits A and B) provide information ahout the 
activities of the Parish as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Parish's finances. Fund financial statements 
start with Exhibit C. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short 
term as well as what remains for future spending Fund tinancial statements also report the Parish's operations in 
more detail than the government-wide statements hy providing inforniation about the Parish's most financially 
significant funds. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Statement (ow Position ond Statement of Activities 

One of the most important questions asked about the Parish's finances is "Is the Parish as a whole hetter off or 
worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Actnities report 
information about the Parish as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These 
statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual ba.yis ofaccountin,g. which is similar to the accounting 
used by most private-sector cornpanies. Accrual of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account 
regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the Parish's net position and changes to them. You can think of the Parish's net 
position, the difference between assets, what the citizens own, and liabilities. what the citizens owe, as one way to 
measure the Parish's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Parish's net 
position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider 
other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the Parish's property tax base and the condition of the 
Parish's capital assets (roads, bridges, huildings, and sewer lines) to assess the overall health of the Parish. 



Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

The t'ondensed Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position, reports on the Parish's govenunental actis ities: 

• Governmental activities• most of the Parish's basic services are reported here, including road 8z bridge 
construction and maintenance, road hghting, lanJfill operations, heahh offices, animal control, low income 
housing (Section 8), and general administration. The Parish's one percent sales tax, property taxes, and state 
and federal grants finance most of these activities. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A hind is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control oser resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities or objectives. Some funds are required to be estahlished by State law. However, the Parish 
establishes manv other funds to help it control and manage money fbr particular purposes or to show that it is 
meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money The Parish's three kinds of funds. 
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary, use different accounting approaches. 

Governmenwl Funds - Most of the Parish's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how 
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These 
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accnial accounting, which measures cash and all 
other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed 
short-term view of the Parish's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental 
fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near 
future to finance the Parish's programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental 
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and gos emmental funds in a 
reconciliation beside the hind financial statements. 

Proprieunv Funds — When the Parish charges customers fin-  the full cost of the services it provides whether to 
outside customers or to other units of the Parish, these services are reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds 
are reported in the same wav that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities. In fact, the Parish's enterprise funds (a component husiness type funds) are the same as the business-
type activities we report in the govenunent-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, 
such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. 

FIduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources 
are not availahle to support the Parish's own programs. The Parish is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong 
to others, such as the Other Post-Employment Benefits Fund. The Parish is responsihle for ensuring that the assets 
reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. This fund 
is reported within the Fiduciary Fund category and is reported on a full accrual basis 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a hill understanding of the 
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be 
found on pages 26 through 74 of this report. 
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Amite, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

Financial Analysis 

The following table provides a comparative summary of the Parish's net position for the current and previous years. 
For more detailed intormation, see the Statement of Net Position on Exhibit A of this report. 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
Governmental Activities 

December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Assets 
Current Assets 
Restricted Assets 
Capital Assets, Net 
Right of Use Assets, Net 

Total Assets 

1 014 2023 $ Change °-;. Change 

S 66,569,121 
18,315,050 

256.360,549 
5.936,960 

S 51.320.105 
33,392.755 

240.418.660 
6,007,967 

$ 15,249.016 
(15,077.7(15) 
15,941.889 

(71,0(17) 

29.71% 
-45.15'.1•6 

6.63% 
-1.18% 

4.84°.•;. S 347,181,680 S 331.139.487 $ 16.042.193 

Deferred Outflow of Resources S 10,980,057 S 15.366.455 O,38(i,398) -28.55°:;) 

Current Liabilities S 16,543,749 S 17.970.331 $ (1,426.582) 

 

Long-Term Liahilities 22,046,817 23,409,989 (1,363,172) -5.82% 
Net Pension Liability 2,663,312 9.876.899 (7,213.587) 

 

Total Liabilities S 41,153,878 S 51,157,219 $ (10.003,341) -19.52% 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,148,893 $ 23,705,276 S (15,55(i,383) -65.61% 

Net Position 

    

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 256,457,094 $ 240,339,185 $ 16,117,909 6.71% 
Restricted 53,082,029 42,203,898 10,878,131 25.78% 
Unrestricted (Deficit) (.780,157) (10,999,636) 10,219,479 -92.91% 

Total Net Position S 308,758,966 S 271.543.447 $ 37:115.519 13 .71o. ;) 

Approxiinately 83.06% of the Parish's net position reflect its investinent in capital assets (land, buildings, 
equipment. & improvements) net of any outstanding related debt used to acquire those capital assets. Capital assets 
are used to pro% ide services to citizens and do not represent resources available for future spending. Although the 
Parish's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should he noted that the resources needed to 
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Approxirnately 17.19% of the Parish's net position represent resources that are subject to external restriction on 
how they may be used. The Parish's restricted net position consist of cash restricted for the high deductible 
insurance and health reimbursement plan, cash required to be restricted by grant co% enants. sales tax le% ies, ad 
valorem tax levies, and contract agreements. Approximately 0.25% of the Parish's net position is a deficit and that 
is attributable to an increase in restricted assets and deferred intlow of resources. 
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Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

The table below provides a comparam e summary of the changes in net position for the years ended 
December 31, 2024, and December 31, 2023. An analysis of the primary sources of these chanees follows the table. 
For more detailed information. see Exhibit B. the Statement of Activines. 

Condensed Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Activities 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Program Revenues: 

2024 2023 $ Chi nge Change 

    

Charges fix-  Services $ 9 143,828 $ 8,757.153 586.675 6.70% 

Grants and Contributions: 

    

Operating 15,702,613 26.935.021 (11,232,408) -41.70% 

Capital 22.688.905 6,010,136 16.678.769 277.51% 

Total Progratn Revenues 47,73s 346 41.702.310 6,033,036 14.47% 

General Revenues: 

    

Taxes. Licenses. and 

Revenue Sharin€ 47,684,823 46,536,126 1,148,697 2.47% 

Investment Earnings 3.267,427 3,726,943 (459,516) -12.33% 

Miscellaneous 9,912,426 6 395 131 3 517,195 55.00% 

Support Revenues 33'1,052 304,904 27,148 8.90% 

Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 124,160 (582.253) 706,413 -121.32% 

Total General Revenues 61.320.888 56.380.951 4,939,937 8.76% 

Total Revenues 109,056,234 98.083.261 10,972,973 11.19% 

Program Expenses: 

    

General Government 12,260.227 10.675.341) 1,584,887 14.85% 

Public. Safety 6,503,060 5,990,289 512,771 8.56% 

Public. Works 36,587,927 53,464,356 (16,876,429) -31.57% 

Health and Welfare 9357,41(1 8.512.1)21) 845,390 9.93% 

Economic Development 3,610.338 5,358,076 (1,747,738) -32.62% 

Culture and Recreation 2.109.582 2.004.115 105467 5.'6% 

Interest on Long-Term Deht 762,571 801,357 (38.786) -4.84% 

Total Expenses 71.191.115 86,805,553 (15.614.438) -17.99% 

Excess Before Transfers and 

Contributbns 37,865,119 11,277,708 26,587,411 235.75% 

Transfers and Contributions 347,989 153.453 194,536 126.77% 

C'han€e in Net Position 38,213,1118 11,431,161 26.781,947 234.29% 

Net Position, Beginning, Restated '70.545.858 260,112,286 10.433.571 4.01% 

Net Position, Ending S 308,758,966 $ 271.543.447 $ 37 1 15,519 13.71% 

9 



Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Goivrnmental Actillties 

The Parish's governmental net position increased by 537,215,519. The increase in Net Position is a result of an 
increase in taxes, licenses, and investment earnings and a reduction in the amount of economic development 
expenditures for other governmental entities 

Business Type Activities 

Fhe Parish had no husiness type activities in 2024. 

General Fund Budvetary HighliRhts 

The Parish budgets were reviewed quarterly and amended one time during the year to reflect changes in forecasted 
revenues and expenditures, with the final amendment taking place on December 23, 2024. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

.-1.s.scts  

The Parish's capital assets for its governmental activities as of December 3 l , 2024, arnount to 5256.3 million (net 
of accumulated depreciation). C'apital assets include land, buildings, improvements, vehicles, machinery and 
equipment, office equipment, roads. and bridges. 

The total increase in the Parish's Net investment in capital assets for the current vear was 6.63%, or 515.9 rnilhon. 

Condensed Statement of Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

 

2024 2023 S Change Change 

Land 7,208,693 $ 6,871,955 336,738 4.90% 

Infrastructure 165.071,021 161,747,921 3,323,100 2.05% 
Construction in Progress 29,401,801 16,477,069 12,924,732 78.44% 
Buildings and Improvements 41,242,330 41.633,834 (391,504) -0.941% 

Machinery & Equipment 13,436.704 13,687,881 (251,177) 

 

C'apital Assets. Net 256.360,549 S 240,418,660 $ 15,941,889 6.63% 

Major capital asset events for the year ended December 3 1. 2024, included the followin2: 

1. 
-) 

South Hoover Road Widening and Roundabout 
Courthouse Elevator 
Flonda Parishes Arena Multipurpose Building 

1() 



Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Condensed Statement of Long-Term Debt 
For the Years Ended December 31, 20'4 and 70'3 

 

2024 2023 $ Change 1!/.3 Change 

Cieneral Obligation Bonds 556,000 S 588,200 (32,2(10) -5.47% 
GOMESA Revenue Bonds 5,265,000 6.075.000 (810.000) -13.33% 
Landfill Rei, enue Bonds 4,065,000 4.190O)0 (125.000) -2.98% 
Premium Landtill Revenue Bonds 105,636 109.862 (4.226) -3.85% 
Financing Leases 5,840,415 6,087.442 (247.027) -4.06% 
Compensated Absences 520,236 997.589 (477.353) -47.85% 
Estimated Liability for Landtill 

Closure Post-Closure Care Cost 3,438,874 5,186.391 (1,747.517) -33.69° 

Total S 19,791.101 S 23,234,484 S (3.443.323) -14.81% 

* The current portion of the deht hsted above is $3.068.215. 

The Parish 1-1, a Whole  

The Parish's combined Net Position changed from a year ago, increasing to approximately $308 million from 
$271 million. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates, 

The Parish looks forward to 2025 with a cautious optimistic economic outlook of continued expansion and growth 
within the local economy. The Parish continues to practice the conservatne fiscal policy (pay as you go) from 
which much of the economic success in Tangipahoa Parish has resulted. 

Request for Information 

Thi, tinancial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customes, and creditors with a general overview 
of the Parish's finances and to the Parish's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions 
about this report or need additional financial information, contact Missy R. Cowart CPA. Director of Finance at 
(985) 748-3211 or Tangipahoa Parish Government, P.O. Box 215, Amite, LA 70422 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Statement of Net Position 
December 31. 2024 

Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Receivables, Net 
Due from Other Go% ernments 
Restricted Assets - Cash 
Capital Amets Not Depreciated 
Capital Assets Being Depreciated. Net 
Right of Use Assets, Net 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
GASB 6R - Pension 
GASB 75 - OPEB 

Total Deferred Outtlow of Resources 

Liabilities 
Accounts, Salaries, and Other Payables 
Due to Other Governments 
Due Within One Year 
Non-Current Liabilitis: 

Due in More Than One Year 
Accrued Compensated Absences 
Postetnployment Healthcare Benefits Payable 
Net Pension Liability 

Total Liabihties 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Grant Funds 
GASB 68 - Pension 
GASB 75 - OPEB 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources  

Exhibit A 

Go‘ernmental 
Activities 

S 42.544.236 
23,405,751 

619.134 
18.315.050 

127.121,427 

5,936,960 

347.181.680 

7,050.732 

10.080,057 

12,865,023 
610.511 

3,068.215 

16.202.710 
5/0.136 

5,323,871 
2.663.312 

41.153.878 

5.313.781 
1.201.788 
1.633.324 

8,148,893 

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 256.457,(194 
Restricted for: 

Debt Service 8.043.779 
Other Purposes 45,038,250 

Unrestricted (780.157) 

Total Net Position S 308.758.966 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government Exhibit B 

Amite, Louisiana 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ending December 3 1, 2024 

Functions Programs 

 

Expenses 

Prograrn Revenues 

 

Net Rex enues 
(Expenses) 

Charges t0r Operatino, Grant. & ('apital Grants & 
Services Contributions Contnbutions 

Governmental 
Activities 

Governmental .Activities: 

     

General Government 5 12,260,227 $ 1,483.988 S 2,049,949 $ 

 

S 1£i,7?ti.'_ytl) 
Public Safety 

 

6.503,060 860.046 3.625 

 

(5.639.389) 
Public Works 

 

36.587.927 6.907.746 4.918.6'; 22.688.905 (2.072.653) 
Health and Welfare 

 

9,357,410 5,012,078 

 

4,345.332) 
Economic Development 

 

3,610,338 3,459.'10 

 

(151.128) 
Culture and Recreation 

 

2,109.582 92.048 259,128 

 

(1,758.406) 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 

 

762,571 

  

(762.571) 

Total Gwernmental Activities 5 71,191,115 $ 9,343.K S 15.702,613 $ 72.688,905 (23,455,769) 

   

General Revenues: 

     

TaNrs: 

     

Sales Taxes 

 

33,645.909 

   

Ad Valorem Taxes 

 

10,013.564 

   

Franchise Taxes 

 

643.997 

   

Severance Taxes 

 

207.481 

   

C)ccupational Licenses 

 

1.392.659 

   

2°0 Fire Insurance Rehate 

 

888.024 

   

State Revenue Sharing 

 

511.134 

   

CioMESA Revenue Sharing 

 

1,270.079 

   

Miscellaneous 

 

9,024.402 

   

Investment Earnings 

 

3,267.427 

   

Crain • (Loss) from Sale of Cap ital Assets 

 

124,160 

   

Support Revenues 

 

337.057 

   

Transfers and Contributions 

 

347.989 

   

Total General Rex enues. Transfers. and Contributions 

 

61,668.877 

   

Change ui Net Position 

 

38,213.108 

   

Net Position - Beginning of the Year, Originally Stated 

 

271.543.447 

   

Prior Period Adjustment 

 

(997.589) 

   

Net Position - Beginning of the Year, Restated 

 

270.545.858 

   

Net Position - End of the Year 

 

S 308.758.966 

acennpanying note!: we an integral part nf the!:e nnanctal !.tatentent.: 
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Tangipahoa rish Government Exhibit (1. 
Amite, Louisiana 

Balance Sheet — Governinental Funds 
December 31. 2(12-1 

Assets 

General 
Fund 

Road and 
Baidge Funds 

Garbage 
District 

No. 1 Funcl 
Industrial 

Bow d 

 

CIAP 
Project 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds Total 

        

Cash and Cash Equivalents S 6,365.555 ¶ 24.028.704 ¶ 48.258 $ 3.098,377 $ 951 $ 6,565,859 $ 40.107.704 
Receivables. Net 3,472.599 5.401.618 5.222.675 763,679 

 

3.11(i,674 5,401,496 23.378,741 
Due from Other Governnients 619.134 

 

- - 

   

619.134 
Due front Other Funds 3,157.31)0 - 

   

476,411 

 

3.633.711 
Restricted Assets - Cash 17,063.503 746.429 189.157 

   

218,069 18.217,158 

Total Assets (01 g 11).176 751 t s.460.000 $ $62.06 S so4.016 $ 12.18 5,424 $ 

Liabilities 

        

Accounts. Salaries. & t:Hlier Payables S 3,4-16.865 $ 3.329.867 $ 983.464 $ 2 144 '43 s 601,036 2.121,400 $ 12.627.375 
Due to Other Governments 70,189 

 

157.022 

   

383,300 610.511 
Due to Other Funds 476.411 

    

2.993.000 164,300 3,633.711 

Total Liabilities 3,093 465 3.3'9 867 1. l40.4SL; 2 144,743 

 

; 5o4,0sari 2,669,000 16,871.597 

Defen•ed Inflows of Resources 

        

Grant Funds 5,/97.656 

 

- 

   

I 6,I2 s.111.781 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,297.656 

     

i 6 J/5 5.313.7S1 

Fund Balances 

        

Restricted 9,080.368 26.683.096 4.278.176 - 

  

8,807,366 48.849.006 
ConannIted 2,057.725 

  

1.717,313 

   

3.775,038 
Asslgiied 137.747 163,788 41,428 - 

  

848,910 1.191.873 
Unassigned 10.111.130 

 

- - 

  

(155.977) 0,955.153 

Total Fund Balances 21.386,970 26,M-16.884 4.319,604 1.717,313 

  

0.500.199 63.7'71,070 

Total Liabilities. Defened Inflows of 
Resources, and Fimd Balances $ 30,678.091 $ 30.17(r.751 $ 5,-160,090 $ 3,862,056 $ 3.5,11.(r,6 w 12,1S5.424 $ X5.956.448 

The aceonipanying notes ale an integral part of these financial statements 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the 
Statement of islet Position 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

Exhibit I) 

Total Fund Balances, Gowrnmental Funds (Exhibit C) S 63.771070 

Amounts reported for gox emmental activities in the statement of net position are different 
because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not 
reported in the flinds. These assets consist of: 

Governmental Capital Assets. Net of Accumilated Depreciation 256,360.549 

Right of use assets used in govemmental activities are not financial resources and. therefore. are 
not reported in the governmental funds. 5.936.960 

The internal servlce fund is used by inanagement to charge administration costs to individual 
funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental 
activities in the statement of net position. 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period. and therefore. are not reported 
in the governmental funds: 

Current (Short-Term) Obligations 
Non-Current (Long-Term) Obligations 
Lease (Short-Term) Obligations 
Lease (Long-Term) Obligations 
Accrued Convensated Absences 

In accordance with Gwernmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, the net 
pension liability related to pension plans, deterred outflows of resources. and deferred inflows of 
resources are not recorded in the governmental funds 

Net Pension Liabilities 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 

In accordance with Gm emmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, the other 
postemployment obligations liability related to health insurance. deferred outflows of resources, 
and deferred inflows of resources are not recorded in the governmental funds: 

Other Postemloyment Obligations Liabihty 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position of Governmental Actilitles (Exh)bit A) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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2,323.786 

i492,826) 
(12,937.684) 

(2.575.389) 
(3265.026) 

(520,236) 

(2,663.312) 
7.)50,732 

( 1.201,788) 

(5.323,871) 
3,929,325 

k1.633.324) 

ti 30$:758.960 



Tangipahoa Parish Government Exhihit E 
Amite, Louisiana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Revenues: 
Taxes 

General 
Fund 

Road and 
Bridg,e Funds 

 

Garbage 
District 

No. 1 Fund 
Industrial 

Board 

 

CIA P 
Pr( ject 

Other 
Government 

Funck Tntal 

         

Saks $ 8.411.477 $ 25.23-1,432 S - S 

 

S 

 

S - $ 33,645.909 
Ad Valorem 1.854,069 - 

 

4.137,266 

   

4,022.229 10,013.5(A 
Franchise 643.997 

  

- 

    

643.997 
Licenses. Permits. and Rent 2.737.424 - 

  

1.289.169 

  

64.368 4,090.961 
Intergovernmental Revenues: 

         

Federal Funds: 

         

Federal Grants 16.578.771 1.031.164 

 

66,1B8 

  

5.840.717 111.761.417 34,278.107 
GoNIESA Revenue Sharing 1.270,079 

  

- 

    

1,270.079 
Opioid Settlement Funds 1.3?4.6£s7 

  

- 

    

1.324.687 
State Funds: 

         

Parish Transportation Funds 

 

969,030 

      

969.030 
State Revenue Sharing 96,123 - 

 

275,085 

   

139.926 511.134 
Severance Tax 2117.481 

  

- 

    

207.481 
State Appropriations 175,760 

  

- 

    

175.760 
State Grants 769.835 335,704 

 

- 

   

463.395 1,568.934 
26 i, Fire Insurance Rebate 888.024 - 

      

888.024 
Alcoholic Beverage Tax 4,486 - 

      

4.486 
Local Funds 

 

- 

     

75.0(►1) 75.000 
Fees, Charges. and 

Commissions for Service 136.338 

  

5.i54.2t19 

   

813.236 6.503.783 
Fines and Forfeitures 2.885 

  

- - 

  

138.858 141.743 
Invesmient Earnings 1.658.181 987,799 

 

114,845 15.577 

  

354.262 3,140.659 
Other Revenues 5.163,45' 214.338 

 

83,"69 2.933.391 

  

5".513 9,016.963 
Total Revenues 42.023,069 28,772,467 

 

10.230,712 4.248.132 

 

5,840,717 17,355.204 108,470.301 

(Concinnedi 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government Exhibit E 
Amite, Louisiana (Continued) 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds 
Fur the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Expenditures: 
General GI ernment 

General 
Fund 

Road and 
Bridge Funds 

Garbage 
District 

No. t Fund 
Industrial 

Board 

 

CIAP 
Project 

Other 
Government 

Funck Total 

 

(Continued from Previous Page) 

    

Legislative $ 735,694 $ 

   

S 

 

$ 735.694 
Judicial 6.9t18.104 

     

254.748 7.162.S52 
Elections 272,581 

      

1 71.581 
Finance and Administrative 4.014,124 

      

4,014.124 
Pubhc Safety 4.984,803 

     

1.590.123 6,574.926 
Publac Works 4.970,770 18.873,654 11.019,428 2.673.022 

 

11.318.711 6.019.286 54,874.871 
Health and Welfare 1.063,498 

     

8,275.478 9,338.976 
Economic Developrnent 372.403 

     

3,315.424 3.687.827 
Culture and Recreation 1.052,402 

     

1,765.793 2.818.195 
Debt Service: 

        

Prmcipal 983,363 894.328 1.374,457 

   

241.290 3,493.438 
Interest 359,797 138,653 297,445 

   

44.892 840.78 7 

Total Expenditures 1 5.717.539 19.906,635 12.691,330 2.673.022 

 

11,318.71 l '1.507.034 93.814.271 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 16.305,530 8.865,831 (2.460,6181 1.575.110 

 

(5,477.994) (4,151.830) 14,656.030 

Other Financing Sources / (Uses): 

        

Capital Lease Financing 55,076 396,055 1.670,659 

   

132.154 2,253.944 
Contribution In 218,797 - - 

   

129.192 347.989 
Sale of Capital Assets 19.093 63.005 8,766 

   

34.504 125.368 
Operating Transfers In . (Out) (9.902.210) (142,017) O16,867) 

  

5.477.994 4.683.100 

 

Total Other Financing 
Sources • (Uses) (9.609.244) 317,043 1.562.558 

  

-3.417.994 4,978.95(1 2.727.301 

Net Change in Fund Balances 6.696.186 L).1$?.k75 (898,0(i0) 1,575.110 

  

827.120 17,383,331 
Fund Balances - Beginning of the Year l4.69u.684 17.0b4.009 5.217.604 142.203 

  

8.671.179 4(1.387.739 

Fund Balances - End of the Year $ 21.380.970 S ?6.846.884 S 4.319.604 S 1.717.313 S 

  

()3.771.070 

The acconipanying notes ale an integral part of these financial statements 

lr 



Tangipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

Exhibit F 

Net Change in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds (Exhibit E-) i 17.383.331 
Ami unit s reported for govenimental activities in the statement of activities are different because 

Capital outlays ale reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However. iu the statement of activities• 
the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimateil useful lives amd iepoi t ed as depieciat in expense. 

These difTerences consist of: 

Capital Outlay 
Drprectattnn Expense 

The acquisition of right-of-use fulimcing leases is reported in governmental funds as expenditmes However. 
in the statement of activities. the cost of these right-of-use assets Ls adlocated ovei their estimated useful lives 

and iepoi t ed as auiFO1 IZ at it al expeiise Tliese differeimes consist of: 

Aciptisition of Rglit-To-Use Assets 
Amortization Evense 

lu the statement of activities. only the loss on the sale of equipment is reported, whereas in the governmental 
funds. the pn weeds from the sale increases financial resources. Thus, the change in net assets diffeas from 

the change in fund balance by the cost of the equipment disposed of. 

Intenial service funds are used hy management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as accountuig 

sei vices. to individual funds. The net revenue / (evense) of eel lain internal fiends is reported within 

pivernmental activities. 

The issuance of long-term deht (e g bonds, financing leases) provides caurent financial resources to 

govenuuental funds. while the lepayment of the prmcipal of long-tenn debt consumes the current tinancial 

resources of tiovernmental funds. Neither transaction, howevei, has any effect on net position 
Repayments of Long-Tenn Debt 

Amortization of Deferred Amounts on Bond Refundmg 

Lease Payments 
Acquisition of Filiancing Lease Obligations 

Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closuie and Postclosure Care Cost Liabilities are not iecoided by the 
governmentad funds, but must he iecoidecl as a ),.eneiad long-term liability ui the govenunental activities in the 

towernment-wide financial statements. This is the amount of the decrease of the Closure and Postclosure 

Care Costs Liability over the prior year 

Itt accordmice with GASB Statement No. S. the net pension liability ielated tn pension plaits is uI n reip mei] 

to be lecorded in the governmema1 fund financial statements Adjustments to pension expense related to 
charges in deferred mtlows of resources and deferred mtlows of resources are reflected ui the statement of 

act ivit ies: 

Net Chanw m Pension Expense 
Contribut ions front Non-Emp loy er Contribut ing Ent it ies 

In accordance with GASB Statement No 75. the net chaniv in the liability for postemployment healthcare 
benehts is ieportecl in the gcivernment-wide statements, but not in the governmental fund statements 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 101. annual changes in accrued compensated absences are not 
recoiclecl in the tiweinmental funds In the statement of activities, these chanws are recorded aptinst cut rent 

year p ay oll emi ens es. 

24.716.109 
(8.780,940) 

1.961.659 
(2.262.422) 

(1.208i 

244.429 

967.200 

4.226 

2.611.742 

(2.364.715) 

1.747,517 

1.039.345 
332,052 

101,993 

511.700 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit B) $ 38.?13.10 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Statements of Net Position - Proprietary Funds 
December 31. 2024 

Assets 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Receivables, Net 

Total Current Assets 

Restricted Assets. 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Total Restricted Assets 

Non-Current Assets: 
Capital Assets. Net of Accumulated Depreciation 
Right of Use Assets, Net of Accumulated Anwuzation 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Exhibit G 

Internal 
Sen. ice 

Fund 

2.436.532 
27,010 

2.463.542 

97,891 

97.891 

76.438 
157.988 

234.426 

Total Assets S 2.795,860 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts. Salaries, and Other Payabks 
Accrued Compensated Absences 
Obligation Under Capital Leases 

Total Current Liabilities 

237.648 
35,437 
38.698 

311,783 

Non-Current Liabilitids: 
Obligation Under Capital Leases 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

l 

120.621 

rota! Liabilities 432,404 
  

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets s 75,107 
Restricted 97.892 
IInrestricted 2.190,457 

Total Net Position S 2.363,456 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

20 



Tangipahoa Parish Government Exhibit 11 

Amite, Louisiana 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 

Operating Revenues: 

Internal 
Sen. ice 

Fund 

 

Charges for lnterfund Services 2,585,873 
FEMA Reimbursement 38.990 

Total Operating Revenues 2,024,863 

Operating Expenses: 

 

Personnel Services 1,855,852 
Insurance Expense 17.463 
Office Expense 95.280 
Official Publications 43,266 
Professional Sell, ices 300.934 
Rents - Short-Term 5.612 
Repairs and Maintenance 39,511 
Telephone 42.245 
Travel, Lodging. Meals. and Conventions 55.188 
Vehicle Fuel 7,912 
C)ther Expenses 35,278 
Amortization Expense 35.'50 
Depreciation Expense 16.560 

Total Operating Expenses 2.550,457 

Operating Income 74,406 

Non-Operating Revenues / (Expenses): 

 

Investment Earnings 126.768 
Interest Expense (11,514) 
Sale of Equipment 1,636 
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,317 

Total Non-Operating Revenues - (Expenses) 118.207 

Change in Net Position 192.013 

Net Position - Beginning of the Year 2.170,843 

Net Position - Eud of the Year $ 1,363,456 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financtal statements 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government 

Amite, Louisiana 
Statements ot Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 

Fur the Years Ended December 31. 2024 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 

Receipts from Interfund Services Provided 

Proceeds from Government Grants 

Payments to Suppliers 

Payments to Employees 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities  

Exhibit I 

Internal 

Service 

Fund 

$ 2,583,904 

38,990 

(649,897) 

(1.7)7,259) 

175,738 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 

Miscellaneous Proceeds 1,317 

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 1 317 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 

Payments on Capital Assets Lease (25,769) 

Interest Paid (11,514) 

Proceeds from Sale of Equipment 1,636 

Purchases of Capital Assets (7.928) 

Net Cash (Used by) Capital and Related Financing Activities (43575) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 

Interest Received 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash &viva lc nt,, 260.248 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of the Year 2.'74,176 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of the Year ti 2.534,424 

Reconciliation of Ope rating Income to Ne t C'as h Provided by Operating Activities: 

Operating Income 74,406 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

Amortization Expense 35'50 

Depreciation Expense 16,566 

(Increase) / Decrease in Assets: 

Accounts Receivable (1)69) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Liabilities • 

Accounts Payable and Other Payables 16,048 

Change in Compensated Absences 35.437 

Total Adjustments 101332 

N et Cash Provided by Operating Activities 175,738 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financtal statements 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government Exhibit .1 
Amite, Louisiana 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
December 31. 2024 

Assets 

Pension 
Trust 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 49,370 

Investments, at Fair Value: 

 

US Treasury Bonds and Not 3.090.330 

Total Assets S 3.139,700 

Accounts Payable ti 2.525 

Total Liabilities 1..i7 5 

Net Position Reserved for OPEB S 3.137.175 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government Exhibit K. 
Amite, Louisiana 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position — Fiduciary Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

Pension 
Trust 

Additions: 

Contributions: 
Employer Contributions 725,288 

Total Operating Revenues 

Investment Earnings: 

Interest Income 93.568 

Net Appreciation (Depreciation) in the Value of Investments (2,655) 

Net Income from Investing Activities 90.913  

Total Additions 816.201 

Deductions: 

Medical Benefits Payments 
Administrative Expenses 

212.841 
24,7116   

Total Deductions 237,547 

Change in Position 578.654 

Net Position - Beginning of the Year 2.558,5-'1 

Net Position - End of the Year S 3,137,175 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Introduction 

Tangmahoa Parish Government (the "Parish") is the governing authority for the Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana. 
The Parish of Tangipahoa operates under a home rule charter and is governed by a "council-president" form of 
government The Tangipahoa Parish Council (the "Council") is composed of ten elected members representing the 
vanous districts within the Parish constituting the legislative branch of the government. Additionally. an elected 
president (the "Parish President") is the chief executive officer and head of the executive branch. The Council and 
Parish President serve four-year terms that expire in January 2028. 

Louisiana Revised Statute ("LRS") 33:1236 gives the Parish various powers in regulating and directing the affairs 
of the Parish and its inhabitants. The more notable of those is the power to make regulations for its own government: 
to regulate the construction and maintenance of roads. bridges, and drainage systems: to regulate the sale of 
alcoholic beverages: and to provide for the health and welfare of the poor, disadvantaged, and unemployed in the 
Parish. Funding to accomplish these tasks is provided by ad valorem and sales taxes, state revenue sharing, permits 
and fees. and state and federal grants. 

Tangipahoa Parish occupies approximately 823 square miles with a population of approximately 133,157. The 
Parish government maintains approximately 1,100 miles of roads, 957 miles of which are paved and 143 of which 
are gravel. Parish govenunent offices are located in the courthouse annex in Amite, Louisiana, with road 
maintenance facilities located at two locations within the Parish. 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Parish conform to generally accepted accounting principles as 
applicable to governments The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for estahlishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. Such accounting and 
reporting procedures also conform to the requirements of LRS 24.513 and to the guidance set forth in the Louisiana 
Govermnental Audit Guide, and to the industry audit guide. Audits (Ohne ond Locul Governmental l_:mts. 

I. Summary of Significant Accouuting Policies 

A. Reporting Entity 

As the governing authority of the Parish. for reportmg purposes, the Parish is the fmancial reporting entity 
for Tangipahoa Parish. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (the Parish), 
(b) organizations for which the primary govenunent is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations 
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that 
exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statement No. 61, The 
Fmanetal Reporting Entuy: Omnibus — an amendment ql.GASB Statements No. 14 and No 34, established 
criteria for determining which component units should be considered part of the Parish for financial 
reporting purposes The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity 
is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to he considered in determining financial 
accountability. These criteria include: 

1) Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and 
a) The ability of the Parish to impose its will on that organization and or 
h) The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific 

financial burdens on the Parish. 



Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

2) Organizations for which the Parish does not appoint a ‘oting majority but are fiscally dependent on the 
Parish. 

3) Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if data of the 
organization were not included because of the nature or significance of the relationship. 

Based on the previous criteria, the Parish has determined that the followin,y component units are part of tlic 
reporting entity: 

Blended Component I.Tnits 

The Parish, as the reporting entity, has chosen to issue financial statements of the primary government, 
except for including the following blended component units whose accounting records are maintained 
by the Parish. 

General Fund — Non-Major Funds 
Construction Board of Adjustment and Appeals 
Industrial Development Board of the Parish of Tangipahoa, Inc. 
Tangipahoa Parish Planning Conunission 

Component Units Omitted from Financial Statements 

ActiVe Component Units 
Fiscal Year 

End 
Criteria 
Used 

Consolidated Gravity Drainage District No. 1 
Coves of the Highland Community Development District 

12131 
0630 

 

Ciravity Drainage District No. 4 12/31 1 
Ciravity Drainage Diitrict No. 5 11/31 

 

Hammond Area Recreation District No. 1 12/31 

 

Hospital Service District No. 1 06/30 1 
Hospital Service District No. 2 09;30 

 

Mosquito Abatement Diitrict No. 1 12/31 

 

Ponchatoula Area Recreation District No. 1 12/31 1 

Recreation District No. 39A of Tangipahoa Parish 0630 

 

SeweraEe District No. 1 12/31 

 

Ta ngipahoa Parish Assessor 12-'31 

 

Ta ngipahoa Parish Clerk of Court 0630 

 

Tangipahoa Pariih Communication District No. 1 12/31 1 
Tangipahoa Parish Convention and Visitors Bureau 12131 

 

Tangipahoa Parish Fire Protection District No. 1 12131 

 

Tangipahoa Parish Fire Protection District No. 12/31 1 
Ta nt„ipahoa Parish Library Board of Control 12131 

 

Tangipahoa Parish Recreation District No. 3 12/31 1 

Tangipahoa Parish Sheriff 06/30 

 

Ta ngipahoa Parish Water District 12'31 

 

Tangipahoa Voluntary Council on AginE 06/30 
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Inactive or Non-Funded Conmonent Units 
Fiscal Year Criteria 

End Used     
Kentwood Area Recreation District 12 . 31 1 
Loranger Area Recreation District No, 10.4 12,31 

The ecnnponent units listed herein are not included in the accompanying financial statements. Their 
financial statements may be obtained by request to the Clerk of the Council of the Parish at (985) 748-3211. 

Considered in the determination of component units of the reporting entity were the Tangipahoa Parish 
School Board. Tax Assessor. District Attorney for the Twenty-First Judicial District, Twenty-First Judicial 
District Court, and the various municipalities in the Parish. It was determined that these eovernmental 
entities are not component units of the Parish re)orting entity because they have separately elected 
governing bodies. are legally separate, and are fiscally independent of the Parish. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and selected blended 
component units. For the most part, the etTect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which relv to a significant extent on fees and charges tbr 
support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues Direct expenses are those that are clearly identitiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. The Parish does not allocate indirect costs. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, 
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The focus of 
eovernmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on "major-  funds Fund statements present in 
separate columns the general fund, followed by major funds. with non-major funds aggregated and 
displayed in a separate column. GASB Statement No. 34 sets tbrth minimum criteria (percentage of the 
assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures expenses of either fund category or the governmental and 
enterprise funds combined) for the deterniination of major funds. In addition to the funds that meet the 
major fund criteria, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the government's officials believe is 
particularly important to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund. 
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C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual hasis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund tinancial statements. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 

Cirants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have heen met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered availahle when they are collectible within the current 
penod or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period, generally around sixty days of fiscal 
year-end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments, are recorded 
only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes. licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to he susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current tiscal period. 
All other revenue items are considered measurable and available onlv when cash is received by the 
government. 

The Parish reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the Parish's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to he accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds: 

The Road and Bridge Funds account for the construction of new roads and bridges and the 
maintenance of the existing roads and roadside areas within the respective road districts. Major 
sources of revenues are 75% of the sales tax revenues and appropriations from the State of 
Louisiana Parish Transportation Fund. 

The Garhage District No 1 Fund accounts for the operation of the Parish landfill. Major sources 
of revenue are ad valorem taxes and landfill user fees. 

The Industrial Development Fund accounts for activities that are used to promote economic 
development and improve the parish's business climate It uses tools like tax-exempt bonds and 
Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTs) to attract and retain businesses, create johs, and expand the 
local economy. 

The CIAP Project Fund accounts for the construction of the Rock Jetty project along parts of Lake 
Pontchartrain. Major sources of revenue are from federal grants. 
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The Parish reports the following fund types. 

Internal service fund accounts for services provided to other departments and agencies of the Parish, or 
to other governments on a reimbursement basis. The internal service fund is the Administrative Fund, 
established hy the Parish to render administrative and accounting services to various funds. It receives 
a fee from each fund based on a combination of revenues received and services rendered for that fund. 

Fiduciary fluids are used to account for assets held by a governmental entity for other parties and cannot 
be used to finance the governmental entity's own operating programs. The Parish has one fiduciary 
fund — a Pension (and C)ther Employee Benefit) Trust fund. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989. generally 
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
Governments also have the option of following subsequent pnvate-sector guidance for their business-tvpe 
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The Parish has elected not to follow 
suhsequent private-sector guidance. 

As a rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-heu of taxes and other charges between the 
eovernment's enterprise operations Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program 
re‘enues reported for the various finictions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 11 charges to customers or applicants for goods. sen ices, 
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions. and 3) capital grants and contributions, 
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than 
as program revenues. Likewise. general revenues include all taxes. 

Internal service funds distinguish operating re‘enues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with an internal service fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues 
of internal service funds are user fees. Operating expenses for internal service funds include the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

D. Deposits and Investments 

The Parish's cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and interest-beanng 
demand deposits. Under state law, the Parish may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest bearing 
demand deposits. money market accounts. or time deposits with state hanks organized under Louisiana law 
and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. Under state law, the Parish may also invest 
in United States bonds, treasury notes, or certificates. These are classitied as investments if their original 
maturities exceed 90 days: however. if the original maturities are 90 days or less. they are classified as cash 
equivalents. 

The investments for the Parish held in the ()PEB Trust Fund are reported at Fair Value in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. 
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L. Reeeix ables and Leased Asset Receivables 

Receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Uncollectible amounts due for garbage 
charges are recognized as bad debts through the establishment of an allowance account at the time 
information becomes availahle. which would indicate the uncollectihility of the particular receivables. 
Uncollectible amounts for property taxes are recorded as a reduction of current revenues. 

F. Short-Tenn lnterfuntl Reeeivables Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided 
or services rendered. These receivahles and payables are classified as due from other funds or due to other 
funds on the governmental funds balance sheet. Short-term mterfund loans are classified as interfund 
receivables payables. In the process of aggregating data for the statement of net assets and the statement 
of activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the governmental funds were 
eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing 
up" effect on assets and liabilities within the statement of net position. 

G. Inventofies 

The Parish utilizes the "purchase method" of accounting for supplies, whereby expendable operating 
supplies are recognized as expenditures s expenses when purchased. The Parish did not record any 
inventory at December 31, 2024, as the amount is immatenal. 

H. Restricted Assets 

Certain resources of the Pansh are set aside for the payment of the high deductible insurance and health 
reimbursement plan, the Rainy-Day reserve fund, debt service requirements. and unspent grant funds that 
are classified as restricted assets on the governmental funds balance sheet because they are maintained in 
separate bank accounts and their use is lirnited by the Parish administration. 

I. Capital Assets and Right-of-Use Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant. equipment, and infrastructure assets (roads and bridges). are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if the actual cost is not available. The Parish maintains a threshold level of $1,000 
or more for capitalizing capital assets. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value 
at the date of donation. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities, if material, is included 
as part of the capitalized value of the assets constnicted. 

For infrastructure that was acquired • built for the period July 1. 1980. to December 31, 2007, the Parish 
has determined the value hy using current replacement cost and deflating that cost by applying a CPI 
adjustment of 51.44% to approximate year of acquisition. There are three elements to the valuation: 
1) Land — Right of Way (ROW); 2) Base; and 3) Asphalt Surface 
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Maintenance, repairs, and minor equipment are charged to operations when incurred. Expenditures that 
materially change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized Upon the sale or retirement of land, 
buildings, and equipment, the cost and rdated accumulated depreciation, if applicable, are elinunated from 
the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations. 

A11 capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line rnethod over the followmy 
estimated usetid lives. 

Description  

Fstimated 
Lives    

Governmental Ac tivitie s: 
Buildings and Building Improvements 40 Years 

Equipment 10 - 15 Yrs 

Furniture and Fixtures 5 Years 
Land Improvements 10 Years 

Road and Bridges 20 Years 

Vehicles 5 Years 

The Parish implemented policies established under GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this 
statement is to better meet information needs of the financial statement users by improving accounting and 
financial reporting fin- leases by governments. The Statement requires all leases (contracts that conveys 
control of the right to use another entity's nonfinancial asset as specified in the contract for a period of time 
in an exchange-like transaction) to he reported under a single accounting model for both lessor and lessee. 
Certain leases that were previously classitied as operating leases are to be recognized as lease assets and 
liabilities. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-
to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred intlow of resources, 
thereby enhancing the rele‘ance and consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. 

Right-of-use assets are a result of leases in which the Parish has entered into a contract with a lessor that 
conveys control of the right to use the lessor's nonfinancial asset as specified by the contract for a period 
of time in exchange or exchange-like transaction. Such assets are reported on the govemment-wide 
financial statements net of amortization at the lessor of the useful life or lease term. 

J. Deferred Outflows Inflows of Resources. 

In addition to assets. the statement of net position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement dement represents a consumption of net position that applies 
to a future period(s) and so will not he recognized as an outflow of resources (expense ; expenditure) until 
then. Additionally, in addition to liabilities, the statement of net position includes a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate tinancial statement element represents an acquisition of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) 
until that time. 

KZ. Compensated Absences 

Parish government employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of 
employment and overtime worked. Vested compensated absences are recorded as expenditures when the 
liability is incurred. Effective July 1. 2009, any vacation leave exceeding 240 hours will he paid to the 
employee at the time of their anniversary date at a rate of SO% of their current pay rate. No employee will 
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accrue vacation in excess of 240 hours. Sick leave has been accrued m accordance with GASB Statement 
No 101. Compensated Absences. The cost of compensated absences is reported on the government-wide 
tinancial statements. 

L. Long-Term Obligations 

In the eovernment-wide financial statements, lone-term debt and other lone-term obligations are reported 
as liabilities in the statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of 
the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable hond 
premium or discount. GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30. 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, establishes standards 
of accounting and financial reporting for debt issuance costs. GASB Statement No. 7, Advance Refimdings 
Resulting in Defeasance of Debt, indicates that debt issuance costs include all costs incurred to issue the 
bonds, including hut not limited to insurance costs (net of rebates trnin the old debt, if any), financing costs 
(such as rating agency fees), and other related costs (such as printing, legal, administrative, and trustee 
expenses). 

The Parish has implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported CIS Assets and Liabilities, 
and with the implementation of GASB Statement No. 65, the recognition of bond-related costs, including 
the costs related to issuance and refunding of debt, were revised. This standard was intended to complement 
GASB Statement No 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows qf Resources, Deferred Inflows qf 
Resources. and _Vet Position. Bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds 
received, are now expended in the period incurred under GASB Statement No. 65. 

The Parish recognizes landtill closure and post-closure costs in accordance with GASB Statement No.18, 
Accounting for Municipal Solid 11.aste Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs. The measurement 
and recognition for landfill costs are reported in the go‘ernment-wide financial statements. 

M. Net Position 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed 
in three components: 

1) Net Investment in Capital Assets — consists of the historical cost of capital assets. including any 
restricted capital assets. net of accumulated depreciation. and reduced by the outstanding balances of 
any bonds. mortgages, notes, or other horrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, 
or improvement of those assets. 

2) Restricted - this component of net position consists of assets that have constraints that are externally 
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other govenunents. or constraints 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

3) Unrestricted - all other net position is reported in this category. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are a‘ailable for use, it is the Parish's policv to use 
restricted resources tirst, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

33 



Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

N. Fund Balance 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. The following classifications describe the relative 
strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used: 

1) Nonspendable — This classification mcludes arnounts that cannot be spent because they are either not 
in spendahle tbrm or they are legally contractually required to he maintained intact. 

The Parish does not have Nonspendable Fund Balance at year-end. 

1) Restricted — This classification includes amounts in which the use of resources is constrained either hy 
(a) external impositions hy creditors. grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments 
or CO impositions by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

The Parish has classified the following items as Restricted Fund Balance at year-end: 

• Garbage District No. 1 Fund, Health Unit, Road Lighting District Road Lighting District 42, 
Road Lightmg Distnct Road Lightmg Distnct 45, Road Lightmg District 46, Road Lighting 
District 47, Road District No. 101 Deht Service Fund, and Sub-Road District No. 1 of Road District 
No. 101 Deht Service Fund are fitnds that are restricted by property tax millages authorized by 
taxpayers 

• Road & Bridge Fund - 75% of the 1% Sales Tax Levy (Renewed in December 2024) 
• Witness Fee Fund - Restricted in accordance with LRS 15.255 
• Juror Per Diem Fund - Restricted in accordance with LRS 13:3049 
• The following funds are restricted due to constraints of grants: 

O General Fund — GOMESA Funds and Cities Readiness Initiative Grant 
Section 8 Housing — Housing Choice Voucher Program. Disaster Housing Assistance 
Program — Katrina, and Disaster Housing Assistance Program — Ike 

4:1 Shelter Grant — Emergency Shelter Cirant Program 
O Rapid Rehousing — Homeless Prevention and Rapid Rehousing Program 

Worktbrce Funds (Adult, Dislocated Worker, Youth, and Adrninistration) — Workforce Cirant 
O Hazard Mitigation Fund — Disaster and Non-Disaster Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 

3) Committed — This classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant 
to constraints imposed by thrmal action of the Council, which is the Parish's highest level of decision-
making authority. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances 
or resolutions approved by Council. These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
Council removes or changes the specified use hy taking the same type of action that was employed 
when the funds were initially committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to 
the extent that existing resources hal, e been specifically committed for use in satising those 
contractual requirements. 

The Parish has classified the following items as Conunitted Fund Balance at year-end. 

• General Fund — Rainy Day Fund created by TPCi Ordinance No. 13-40 
• Industrial Board - Actions taken by the Board in 2002 to lease property to Wal-Mart and Elmer 

Candy Co.; in 2017 to lease property to Intralox, LLC: and in 2023 to lease property to Amite 
Solar, LLC. 
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4) Assigned - This classification includes amounts that are constramed by the Parish's intent to be used 
for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent should be expressed by the 
Parish's governing body itself or a committee or official to which the governing body has ddegated the 
authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes, typically either the Council's Finance 
Committee, the Parish President, or the Director of Finance. This classification also includes the 
remaining positn e fund balance for all governmental funds except for the General Fund. 

The Parish has classified the following items as Assiped Fund Balance at year-end: 

• Keep Tangipahoa Beautiful Fund 
• Animal Shelter Fund 
• Florida Parishes Arena 
• The General Fund. Road and Bridge Fund, Garbage District No. 1, Keep Tangipahoa Beautiful, 

and Health Unit all ha‘e funds that are assigned due to the Parish's Health Reimbursement 
Insurance Program (not created by Parish ordinance) 

5) Unassigned — This classitication is the residual fund babnce for the General Fund It also represents 
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted. committed, or 
assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. 

The Parish has classified the following items as Unassigned Fund Balance at year-end: 

• General Fund 
• The following funds are considered unassigned because they have a deficit in fund halances: 

Workforce Investment Opportunity Act (Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs) 
o Hamrd Mitigation Fund 

When fund balance resources are a‘ailable for a specific purpose in multiple classifications. the Parish will 
eenerally use the most restrictive funds first in the following order: restricted, committed, assigned, and 
unassigned as they are needed. However, the Parish's management resen es the right to selectively spend 
unassigned resources first and to defer the use of the other classifications of funds. 

O. Sales Taxes 

On Novemher 5. 2024, the voters of TanL,ipahoa Parish approved a renewal of a 1.01!•0 Parish wide general 
sales and use tax to be levied for the Parish. The proceeds of the tax are dedicated based on 75% for road 
and bridge maintenance and improvements and the remaining 251!/0 for general governmental purposes. The 
tax as renewed is effective for the period December 31, 2025 through December 31, 2029. 

P. Ad Valorem Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes are levied in October and hilled to the taxpavers in November. Billed taxes become 
delinquent as of January 1 of the following year at which time an enforceable lien is attached. The taxes 
are generally collected in December of the current year and January and February of the ensuing year. Ad 
valorem taxes and the related state revenue sharing are recognized in the year the taxes are billed. The 
Tangipahoa Parish Sheriff Tax Collector on behalf of thr Parish bills. collects, and remits the property 
taxes based on assessed values detertnined by the Tangipahoa Parish Assessor. 
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The following is a summary of authorized and kvied ad valorem taxes for the vear. 

 

Authorized 
Millaue 

Levied 
Milbge 

Expiration 
Year 

Pari,h-Wide Taxes. 

   

General Fund. Cities 2.00 1. 53 Continuous 
General Fund. Rural 4.00 3.06 Continuous 
Special Revenue Fund. 

Ileakh Unit Maintenance 4.00 4.00 2026 
District Taxes: 

   

Special Revenue Funds: 

   

Road Liahting District Number 1 2.00 2.00 2024 
Road Liahting District Number 2 16.62 6.00 2026 
Road Lighting District Ntunber 4 15.29 5.00 2026 
Road Lighting District Number 5 10.00 6. 50 1 028 
Road Lighting District Number 6 10.00 6. 50 1 028 
Road Lighting District Number 7 10.00 7.00 2026 
Garbage District Number 1 10.00 10.00 2032 

Debt Service Funds: 

   

Road District Number 101 Variable ). 50 2036 
Sub-Road District Number 1 of 101 Variable 2.50 2036 

Q. Interfund Transactions 

   

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses. Transactions that 
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures • expenses initially made from it that are properly 
applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures ; expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions 
of expenditures expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 

All other interfund transactions are reported as operating transfers For the purpose of the statement of 
activities, all interfund transfers between funds have heen eliminated. 

R. Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

The GASB issued GASB Statenient No. 101, Compensated Absences. The okketive of this Statement is 
to bctter meet the information needs of fmancial statement users hy updatina the recognition and 
measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition 
and measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. 
This Statement requires that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not 
been used and (2) leave that has been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means. A 
liability should he recognized for leave that has not been used if (a) the leave is attributable to services 
already rendered, (b) the leave accumulates, and (c) the leave is more likely than not to be used for time off 
or otherwise paid in cash or settled through noncash means. The Parish adopted the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 101 during 2024. Beginning net position has been restated as a result of the adoption 
of this standard. 
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Eqiinates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
recorded amount of the assets and liabilities and disclosure of contineent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the fmancial statements and reported amounts of re% enues and expenses during the report period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

A. Budgets 

The Parish uses the following budgetary practices: 

1) Preliminary budgets for the ensuing year are prepared by the Director of Finance during C)ctober of 
each year. During Novemher, the Council reviews the proposed budgets and makes changes it deems 
appropriate. The availability of the proposed budgets is then advertised in the official journal. Prior to 
meeting in December, the Parish holds a public hearing on the proposed hudgets in order to receive 
comments from residents. Changes are made to the proposed budgets based on the puhlic hearings and 
the desires of the Council as a whole. The budgets are then adopted during a Council meeting and a 
notice is published in the official journal. 

2) Unexpended appropnations lapse at year-end and must be appropriated again in the next year's budget 
to be expended. 

3) The Pansh adopts budgets for the General Fund, all special revenue funds, and the internal service 
proprietary fund using the same basis of accounting to reflect actual revenues and expenditures 
recognized on a generally accepted accounting principles basis. Budgetary control is at the functional 
level Within functions, the Parish President has the authority to make amendments as necessary. 

4) During the year, the C'ouncil receives quarterly budget comparison statements that are used to control 
the operations of the Parish. The Director of Finance presents necessary budget amendments to the 
Council during the year when actual operations will differ materially from those anticipated in the 
original budget. During a regular meeting. the Council reviews the proposed amendments, makes 
changes as needed, and formally adopts the amendments. The adoption of amendments is included in 
Council minutes published in the official journal. 

The original proposed budgets thr the General Fund, the special revenue funds and the internal service 
proprietary fund were made available for public inspection on October 10, 2023 and were published in the 
official journal on November 30, 2023. A public hearing was held in the Parish Ciovernment Building on 
December 11, 2023. The original budgets were adopted on December 11, 2023. 

The budgets of the Parish were amended one time during the year on December 24, 2024. 
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B. Revenues — Actual and Budeet 

The following individual funds had actual revenues and other sources that failed to meet budgeted amounts 
for the year ended December 31, 2024. 

Fund Budget  

Council Chamber Comminications S 66,000 S 
WI( ►A - Diskicated Worker Program 1,062,386  

Actual 

64,368 $ 
1,065,459 

Unfavorable 
Variance 

(1,632) -2.47". 
3,073 0.79".0 

Percent 

The following individual funds had actual expenditures and other uses that exceeded hudgeted amounts for 
the year ended December 31, 2024: 

Fund Budget Actual 
Unfavorable 

Variance Percent 

Animal Shelter S 1,596,420 S 1,635,084 $ (30,5(,4) -2.48°. 
Witness Fee 81,250 *3,430 (2,180) -2.68°. 
Industrial Board 1,889,409 2,673,022 (783,613) -41.47% 
Florida Parishes Arena 1,766.762 1.773,16* (6.406) -0.36°0 
Road Liahting District F6 443,500 447,670 (4,170) -0.94°. 

The Louisiana Local Government Budget Act requires a local government to amend its operating budget 
when the total revenues and other sources fail to meet total budgeted revenues and other sources by 5% or 
more and when the total expenditures and other uses exceed total budgeted expenditures and other uses hy 
5% or more. The Parish failed to amend the hudget tor the Industrial Development Fund by an adequate 
amount for the year ended December 31, 2024. 

C. Fund Deficits 

The following individual funds have a deficit in unassigned hind balance at Decernber 3 1 . 2024: 

Special Revenue Funds: 

De fic it 
Amount 

 

Workforce Investment Opportunity Act - Adult $ (81,075) 
Workforce Investment Opportunity Act - Dislocated Worker (42,270) 

CapitalProject Fund: 

 

Hazard Mitigation Fund (32.632) 

The General Fund will transfer funds to cover the deficits until the erant funds are received. 



Taugipahoa Parish Government 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
As of and For the Year Ended December 31 2024 

3. I)eposits and Investments 

2k. I)epo5its  

At December 31, 2024, the Parish had deposits (hook balances) totaling ¶60,908,656 (includin2 $49,37(1 in 
the fiduciary fluid) as follows: 

Cash on Hand 1 160 
Non Interest-Bearing Demand Deposits 200 

Interest-Bearing Dernand Deposits 60,907.096 

Total Book Balances 60.9W656 

The deposits are stated at cost. which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting 
bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal 
agent hank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times 
equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the narne of the pledging 
fiscal agent hank in a holding or custodial hank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. 

Per GASB Statement No. 3. Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments tint-hiding Repurchase 
Agree:news). and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, as amended hy GASB Statement No. -10. Deposit and 
Investment Risk Disclosures — an amendment of alSB Statement No. 3, the Parish's deposits are exposed 
to custodial credit risk since the collateral pledged by the tiscal aeent is not held in the Parish's name. 

At December 31, 2024, the Parish had S60,767,128 in hank deposits with a total of S60,766,928 in interest 
bearing accounts and $200 in non-interest-bearing accounts. Of these deposits, $7,890.951 are related to 
the issuance of the Parish's GOMESA Bonds, 2019 Series Bonds, and the OPEB Tnist. Under the terms of 
the agreement with Whitney Bank, the bank maintains control of the funds and distributes funds in 
accordance with bond documents and the Parish's requests. All funds are fully collateralized by the Trust 
Department of the respective bank. 

Of the remaining deposits of $52,876,177, $250,000 is secured fmm risk by federal deposit insurance and 
the remaining $52,626,177 is uninsured but collateralized with securities held hy the custodial bank in the 
name of the fiscal agent bank, hut not in the Parish's name. 

LRS 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledeed 
securities within 1() days of being notified by the Parish that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited 
funds upon demand. Custothal credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Parish's deposits 
inay not be returned to it. The Parish does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of 
December 31. 2024, $52,876,177 of the Parish's bank balances are exposed to custodial credit nsk. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, liquid iivestments of the internal service fund with a matunty 
of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. 
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B. In\ estments 

At December 31, 2024, the Parish's investment balances are as follows: 

Investment Maturities (In Years) 

Investment Type  Fair Value Less than I 1 - 5 6 -          
United States Treasury 

Bonds and Notes $ 2.929.890 $ 696.723 $ 1,SI)5,43-tE $ 427,733 

Ishares MBS EFT 160.440 160.440 

The Parish has contracted with external investment managers at Hancock Whitney Trust & Asset 
Management to manage all of the funds in the OPEB Trust Fund. The fbllowing facts are relevant to 
pension tnist investments: 

• Credit Risk and Custodial Credit Risk: 

Credit risk is defined as the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the issuer or counterparty 
to a transaction, the Trust will not be able to recover the value of its investments. Credit risk and 
custodial credit risk are minimized by the purchase of bonds and notes that are issued by the US 
Treasury. At December 31, 2024, the Tmst was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

The Parish has no formal investment policy regarding custodial credit risk or concentration credit risk. 

4. Receivahles 

The following is a summary of receivables at December 31, 21124: 

Spec la] Capital 
General Revenue Projects 

Fund Funds Funds 

Debt 
Service 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

lin ernal 
Service 

Fund 

Taxes: 

      

Ail Valorem S 1.h10.395 S 7,854.265 $ S 56,778 $ 9.721.43h S 

Sales and Use 778,873 2.336.618 

 

- 3.115,491 

 

Int et fpvenuuent al: 

      

Revenue Sharing 64,082 276,674 - 

 

340,756 

 

Other 739,806 4.129,962 4.117.316 

 

&II-A.37,(184 14,621 

Accotints Receivable - 998.575 - 

 

998,575 

 

Other 79.443 145.954 

  

225.397 12.3Y) 

Less: A Dom. ance for 

Uncollectibles 

 

( l 0,0001 - 

 

(10.1)00) 

 

Total Rece ivatil es S 3,472,599 S 15,732.U48 $ 4,117,316 S 56,778 $ 23.378.7-11 S 27.010 

All receivables are reported at their gros, value and, where appropriate, are reduced by  the estimated portion 
that is expected to be uncollectible. 
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5. Inter fund Receivables and Payables / Transfers 

A. Due to Due from balances at Decemher 31, 2024, include the ti.dlowing significant items: 

• As of December 31, 2024, the General Fund has a Due From balance totaling $3,157,300 from various 
non-major governmental funds. The General Fund has provided funding to these non-major 
governmental funds for the purpose of covering necessary expenditures. 

• As of December 31. 2024. the CIAP Project Fund has a net Due To halance totaling $2,993.000 with 
the General Fund. The CIAP Project Fund will be reimbursed hond proceeds for construction expenses 
that were paid. 

All interfund Due to i I)ue from balances are considered short-term, and are expected to be repaid within 
the next year. 

B. Interfund Transfers at December 31, 2024, consist of the following significant items: 

• For the year ended December 31. 2024, the Road & Bridge Fund received Transfers In totillin;.! 
5988,269. All transfers were thr expenses funded through the American Rescue Plan. 

• For the year ended Decemher 31, 2024, the Garbage District No. 1 Fund received Transfers In totaling 
5283.133 tbr expenses funded through the American Rescue Plan. 

• For the year ended December 31, 2024. the CIAP Fund received Transfers In totaling $5,477.994. This 
was a transfer of bond proceeds from the General Fund to construct the Rock Jetty. 

• For the year ended December 31, 2024, various non-major governmental funds received Transfers In 
totaling $4.683,394 to suhsidize operations and to reimburse for projects funded through the American 
Rescue Act. 

No interfimd transfers that occurred during the year ended December 31, 2024 are considered to be non-
routine or inconsistent with the activities of the individual funds making the transfers. 

6. Restricted Asset 

A. Cash  

Emplo‘ec Withholdin  

The Parish has a payroll fund in which payroll taxes, retirement contributions, and insurance premiums 
due to others are withheld from the employee's payroll checks. As of December 31, 2024, the cash 
balance of this account was 51,466,649 

HUAI I)eductihlz Insurance and Health Reimbursement Plan 

The Parish provides to its employees, as an employinent benefit, a High Deductible Health Insurance 
Plan (through Blue Cross Blue Shield) which is supplemented by Individual Health Reimbursement 
Accounts (administered by Choice Care). In addition to paying the health insurance premium for the 
employee, the Parish is also responsible to pay a portion of the employee's deductible. To fund this 
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deductible portion, the Parish makes monthly deposits equal to 1:12th  of the Parish portion of the annual 
deductible into a separate hank account These funds are then transferred to Choice Care as the 
employees use the funds for qualitYing medical expenses. Any halances remaining after the close of 
the deductible year are carried over to offset future plan expenses. As of December 31, 2024, the 
combined cash balance of this fund was $412,292, which is included on the Statement of Net Position 
as Restricted Assets — Cash. 

Ad\ anced Cash Receipts 

The General Fund has $5,297,656 of restricted cash resulting from advanced cash receipts as of 
December 31, 2024 The Parish was advanced funds in a prior fiscal year from the American Rescue 
Plan Act. These funds must be ohligated to be spent hy December 31, 2024. 

Ordinance No 13-40 — Reserve Fund 

On October 15, 2013, the Council adopted an ordinance to establish a reserve fund that shall be kept in 
a separate banl account. These funds can only be spent upon the specitic request of the Parish President 
and the approval of two-thirds vote of the Council. As of December 31, 2024, the cash balance of this 
account was $2,057,725. 

Ordinance No 18-68 — OPEB Irrevocable Tax-Exenipt Trust 

On December 10, 2018, the Council adopted an ordinance to establish an irrevocahle tax-exempt tnist 
pursuant to Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code and the GASB Statements for the purpose of 
funding and prefunding the Parish's share of the OPEB provided under the Retiree Plan in accordance 
with the GASB Statements. This was done to provide a vehicle for advance fundmg of such ()PEB by 
the Parish and to offset the OPEB Liability required to be shown on the financial statement by the 
amount of assets in the trust. As of December 31, 2024, the combined cash balance of this fund was 
549,370. 

I)ebt Service Requirements 

During 2019, the Parish issued Series 2019 Revenue Bonds for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, 
extending and improving the Parish landfill, refunding Series 2013 Revenue Bonds, funding a reserve 
ftmd, and paying the costs of issuing the Bonds Upon the issuance of these bonds, the Parish became 
suhject to Debt Service Requirements and other restrictions. $360 is restricted related to the issuance 
and related construction cost of the project. 

In Decemher 2018, the Parish issued Revenue Bonds for the purpose of financing qualitied GOMESA 
projects. Upon the issuance of these bonds. the Parish became subject to Deht Sen ice Requirements. 
As of Decemher 31. 2024. $9.080,368 is restricted in the General Fund. 
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B. In\ estments 

Ordinance No IS-68: OPEB Inc\ ocable Tax-Exempt Trust 

On December 10, 2018, the Council adopted an ordinance to establish an irrevocahle tax-exempt tnist 
pursuant to Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code and the GASB Statements for the purpose of 
funding and prefunding the Parish's share of the OPEB provided under the Retiree Plan in accordance 
with the GASB Statements. This was done to provide a vehicle for advance funding of such ()PEB by 
the Parish and to offiet the OPEB Liahility required to be shown on the financial statement hy the 
amount of assets in the trust. 

A. of December 31, 2024, the combined investments halance of this fund was $3,090.330. 

7. C'a pital Assets 

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31. 2024: 

 

Balance 
01.01'24 Additions Deductions 

Balance 
12'31.24 

Capital Assets Not Depreciated 

    

Land S 6,871,955 S 336,738 $ $ 7.208.693 
Infrastructure (Land & Base) .X),118.360 392,573 

 

90,510.933 
Construction in Progress 16,477.069 18.519.-141 5.594.709 29.401,301 

Total Capital Assets Not Depreciated 113.467.34 19,248.752 5.594,709 127.121.427 

Capital Assets Depreciated 

    

Buildings 67,645,939 1,414,260 

 

69.060.199 
Infrastructure 15t.),220,7011 8,244,864 

 

167.465.564 
Equipment 30,634,766 1,410.870 6,892 32.038.744 

Total Capital Assets Depreciated 257,501,405 11,069,994 6,892 268.564.51)7 

Less Accumilated Depreciation tor: 

    

Buildings 26,012,105 1,805,764 

 

27.817.869 
Infrastructure 87,591,139 5,314,337 

 

92.905.476 
Equipment 16.946.835 1.660.839 5 684 18.602.040 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 130,550.129 8.780.940 5 684 139.3'5,385 

Total Capital Assets Depreciated. Net 126,951.276 2.239.054 1.208 129.239.122 

Total Gtnernmental Acthities 

Capital A.ssets, Net S 240,418,661) S 21.537.806 $ 5,595,917 $ 256.360.549 
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Depreciation was charged to govemmental functions as follows: 

General Government 4'79.763 

Public Safety 284.613 

Public Works 7.538.295 
Health and Welfare 247.077 

Economic Development 36.936 

Culture and Recreation 194.256 

Total Depreciation Evense - Gusernmental Activities S 750 940 

8. Right-of-Use Assets 

The following is a summary of changes in right of use assets for the year ended December 31. 2024: 

Balance 

01 01'24 Addition ,, Dcduction,, 

Balance 

12'31-24 

Right of Use Assets: 

  

Buildings 510,814 $ - S 

 

51t).S14 

Equipment 5,7(17.017 1.817,617 

 

7.524.634 
Vehicles 3,533,657 491,454 483.154 3.541.957 

Total Right of Use Assets 9,751,488 2,309,071 483.154 11.577.405 

Less Accumiated Amortization for 

  

Bu dduigs 269,009 62.469 

 

331.478 

Equipment 2,146,636 1,517.411 

 

3.664.047 

Vehicles 1,317.876 682,542 365.498 1,644,920 

Total Accumulated Amortimmon 3,743,5'1 2,262,422 365,498 5.640:145 

Total Right of Use Assets. Net S 6,0117.967 S 46,649 $ 117.656 $ 5.936.961) 

Amortization was charged to govermnental functions as follows: 

  

General Government 

 

41.575 

Pubhc Safety 

 

36.948 

Public Works 

 

2.114.005 

Health and Welfare 

 

51.199 
Economic Development 

 

13.223 

Culture and Recreation 

 

5.472 

Total Amortization Expense - Gmernmental Activities 

 

S 2.262.422 
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9. Lung-Term Debt 

A. Summary of Changes in Long-Tenn Debt 

The following is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions for the year ended December 31, 2024: 

Governmental Activitie. 

Balance 
tRestated) 

01 01 24 Additions Reductions 
Balance 
12'31.24 

Due W aim 
One Yeai 

Cieneial Clbligation Bonds $ 588,200 $ 32,200 $ 556,000 33.600 
GoMESA Revenue Bonds 6.075.000 

 

810.000 5,265.000 325.001) 
Senes 2019 Landfill 

Revenue Bonds 4.190,000 

 

125,000 4,065,000 130.000 
Senes 2019 Luidfill 

Revenue Bonds Premium 109,862 

 

4.226 105.636 4.225 
Capital Leases 6,087,442 2.364.715 2,611,742 5,840,415 2.575.389 
Compensated Absences 997.589 

 

477.353 520.236 

 

Estinnted Liability for Landfill 
Closme Postelosure Care 5.186.301 

 

1,747,517 3.438.874 

 

Total Governmental Activities S 23,234.484 $ 2.36.4.715 S 5.808,038 $ 19.791,161 $ 3.1)68.215 

B. Financing Leases 

The Parish has entered into approximately 148 leases for vehicles, 45 leases for heavy equipment, and 6 
leases for buildings. These leases meet the criteria of GASB Statement No. 87 and the assets acquired 
through these leases are referred to as right-of-use assets. See Note 8 for additional details. The lease 
payments are retlected as debt service expenditures at the government fund reporting level. 

Vehicle Leases — The Parish has entered into financing lease agreements for vehicles at interest rates 
between 3.70% and 7.70% with Enterprise FM Trust. The lease ohligations are effective for various penods 
of time, but generally are for five-year periods. Monthly payments of principal and interest per vehicle 
range from $382 to $1.537. Total payments for 2024 are $949,063 (principal of $828,170 and interest of 
$120,893). 

Heavy Equipment Leases — The Parish has entered into financing lease agreements for heavy equipment at 
interest rates between 3.85°-;. and 7 60% with various manufacturers. The lease obligations are effective 
for various periods of time, hut generally are for three-year penods. Monthly payments of principal and 
interest per piece of equipment ranee from $1.100 to $17,829. Total payments for 2024 are $1,920.158 
(principal of $1,681,313 and interest of $238,845). 

Building Leases — The Parish has entered into financing lease agreements for office and work space at 
interest rates between 3 79% and 6 39% with various landlords in Tangipahoa Parish. The lease obligations 
are effective for various periods of time, hut generally are for 5 to 9-year periods. Monthly payments of 
principal and interest per location range from $1.700 to $6.000. Total payments for 2024 are $114,700 
(principal of $102,260 and interest of $12,040). 
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C. Bonds 

Revenue bonds payahle are comprised of the following issue: 

$4.600,000 issue of 2019 for the purpose of extending and improving the Parish 
landfill and refunding the Series 2014 Bonds, due in semi-annual instalknents of 
$55.000 to $230,000 through April 1. 2049 with interest at 2.75% to 4.00%. Debt 
retirement payments are made from the Garbage District No. 1 Fund. $ 4.065.000 

$7,725.000 issue of 2018 for the purpose of financing qualified GoMESA projects. 
due in semi-annual installments of $260.000 to 5655.000 through November 1. 2038 
with interest at 5.375%. Debt retirementimyments are made from the General 
Fund. 5,165.000 

Total Revenue Bonds Payable $ 9.330,000 

General Obligations bonds payahle are comprised of the following issue: 

$392,800 issue of 2017 for the purpose of fmancinu the constniction and 
improvements of public roads. highways. and bridges within the district. due in semi-
annual instalknents of $11,000 to $27,800 through March 1, 2037 with interest at 
3.95%. Debt retirement payments are made from the Road District No. 101 
Sinking Fund. 

$362,300 issue of 2017 for the purpose of fmancing the construction and 
improvements of public roads, highways, and bridges within the diitrict, due in semi-
annual in:stalk/lents of $12,000 to $25,600 through March 1, 2037 with interest at 
3.95%. Debt retirement Nyments are made from the Sub-Road District No. 1 of 
Road District No. 101 Sinking Fund. 

Total General Obligations Bonds Payable 

S 289,900 

266.100 

S 556,000 
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I). I)ebt Service Requirements to Maturity 

The annual requirements to amortize the Revenue Bond.s debt outstanding as of December 31. 2024, 
including principal and interest, are as follows: 

Year Ending December 31 

 

Revenue Bonds 

  

Principal Interest 

 

I ota 1 

,0)5 5 455,000 458,731 ,$ 913.731 

2026 475,000 437288 

 

912288 

2027 495,01X) 414,963 

 

909963 

2028 520,000 391,4S8 

 

911,488 

2029 545,000 366,788 

 

911,788 

2030 - 2034 3,190,000 1.394,788 

 

4.584,788 

2035 - 2039 2,045,000 555,644 

 

2,600,644 

2040 - 2044 990,000 161 150 

 

1.151.250 

2045 - 2049 615.000 47.175 

 

662.175 

 

S 9 130,000 S 4,228.115 $ 13,55S. l 15 

The annual requirements to amortize the General Obligation Bonds debt outstanding as of 
December 31, 2024, including principal and interest are 

Year Ending I)eceiuber 31 

as follows: 

( nc ral (1)bligalion Bonds 

Principal Interest Total 

2025 $ 33,600 21,298 54,898 

2026 34,9(X) 19,946 54,846 

2027 36,200 18,541 54,741 

302S 37,7(X) 17,082 54,782 

2029 39,1(X) 15_565 54,665 

2030 - 2034 220,300 52,877 273,177 

7035 - 7037 154,200 9294 163,494 

 

s 556.000 S 154603 $ 710,603 
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The annual requirements to amortize Financing Leases outstanding as of December 31. 2024, includmy 
principal and interest are as follows: 

Year Ending December 31 

Governmental Activities - Financing Leases 

Principal Interest Total 

2025 $ 2575,389 $ 292.176 $ 2,867565 
2026 1,992,081 142,178 2.134,259 
2027 1.073.420 46,194 1,119,614 
2028 173,906 7,278 181,184 
2029 -'5.019 551 26.1 70 

 

5,840,415 488.377 ti 0.328,792 

Interest expense of $840,787 in the fund financial statements for the year consisted of 5359.797 in the 
General Fund: $138,653 in the Road and Bridge Fund, $297,445 in the Garbage District No. 1 Fund: and 
544,892 in Other Governmental Funds Additionally, interest expense fig governmental activities of 
$852.301 includes $11,514 in the mtemal seruce. 

E. Compensated Absences 

At December 31, 2024, employees of the Parish have accumulated $520,236 of employee leave benefits, 
which was computed in accordance with GASB Statement No. 101. Of this arnount, $484,799 is recorded 
as an obligation of the Govenunental Funds and 535,437 is recorded as an obligation of the Internal Service 
Fund. 

10. Dedication of Proceeds & Flow of Funds — Road District No. 101 of the Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 and Sub-Road District No. 1 of Road District No. 101 of the Parish 
of Tangipahoa, Louisiana General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 

The Pansh through its governinL,  authority adopted ordinances 17-02 and 17-03 on February 13. 2017, 
authorizing the issuance of Road District No. 101 of the Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2017 and Sub-Road District No. 1 of Road Distnct No. 101 of the Parish of Tangipahoa, 
Louisiana General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 in the amount of 5392,800 and $362,300, respectively, for 
the purpose of (i) tinancing the construction and improvements of public roads, highways and hridges: (ii) 
fimding capitalized interest on the Series 2017 Bonds, and (iii) payiig the costs of issuing the Series 2017 
Bonds. Per the ordinances. the Bonds will be payable from ad valorem taxes to be levied and collected in the 
manner provided by Article VI, Section 33 of the Constitution of the State of Louisiana of 1974, and statutory 
authority supplemental thereto with an estimated three (3) mills for each district to be levied in the tirst year to 
provide for the payment of principal and interest on said bonds. Certain funds are required to be established 
and maintained with the Paying Agent for the receipt and disbursement of Bond Proceeds. An analysis of these 
accounts is provided as follows: 

Debt Service Fund — The bond ordinance requires that a Debt Service Fund be established to receive 
deposits of the Tax and accrued interest, if any, on the Bonds. The fiscal agent depository for the Debt 
Service Fund shall transfer froni the Debt Service Fund to the Paying Agent at least three (3) days in 
advance of each Interest Payment Date, flinds sufficient to pay promptly the principal and interest falling 
due on such date. 
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The paying agent is also the Parish's fiscal agent and does not require the establishment of a debt service 
fund. The Parish is aecounting for debt service payments for both bonds in separate internal debt service 
funds. 

At December 31, 2024, the Parish was in compliance with this covenant. 

Capitalized Interest Fund — The bond ordinance requires that a Capitalized Interest Fund he created and 
held by the Payino Agent. Any proceeds of the Bonds which constitute capital interest shall be deposited 
therein and the proceeds shall be used solely to make interest payments on the Bonds prior to receipt of 
sufficient Tax proceeds. 

The paying agent is also the Parish's fiscal agent and does not require the establishment of a Capitalized 
Interest Fund. The Parish is accounting for capitalized interest payments for both bonds in separate internal 
debt service funds. 

At December 31, 2024, the Parish was in compliance with this covenant. 

11. Dedication of Proceeds & Flow of Funds — Parish of Tangipahoa, State of Louisiana Local Government 
Environmental Facilities and Community Development Authority Revenue Bouds (Tangipahoa Parish 
GoMESA Project), Series 2018 (Green Bonds) 

The Parish throueh its governing authority adopted an ordinance on November 13, 2018, authorizing the 
issuance of Parish of Tangipahoa, State of Louisiana local government environmental facilities and community 
development authority revenue honds (Tangipahoa Parish GoMESA project), series 2018 (green bonds) in the 
amount of $7.725.0000 for the purpose of (a) projects and activities for the purposes of coastal protection, 
including conservation, coastal restoration, hurricane protection, and infrastnicture directly affected by coastal 
wetland losses: lb) mitigation of damage to fish, wildlife or natural resources: (c) implementation of a federally 
approved marine, coastal or comprehensive conservation management plan, (d) mitigation of the impact of 
outer Continental Shelf activities through the funding of onshore infrastructure projects: and (e) associated 
planning and administrative costs (collectively, the "GOMESA Pro)ects"). In that ordinance. the Bonds will he 
payable from an irrevocable and irrepealable pledge of GOMESA Revenues. The ordinance authorized the 
issuance, hale, and delivery of the bonds to Wells Fargo Securities LLC, Jackson. Mississippi, and authorized 
the Parish President to execute a purchase agreement with to Wells Fargo Securities LLC.. within the parameters 
set forth by the ordinance. 

In that ordinance, certain funds are required to be established and maintained by Hancock Whitney's Trust 
department (Tnistee) for the receipt and disbursement of bond proceeds and repayment of the bonds. The 
Trustee is responsible for all transfers of funds between the various bank accounts. 

An analysis of these accounts is provided as follows: 

Constniction Fund - The bond ordinance requires that the cost of the project be paid from this fund. When 
the construction of the Project is complete, the remaining balance in the Construction Fund shall be 
transferred to the Debt Service Fund. The balance in this account is S7,010,550 as of December 31. 2024. 

At December 31, 2024. the Parish was in compliance with this covenant. The construction of the Project 
is not complete. 
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Debt Service Fund - The bond ordinance requires that a Debt Service Fund be created to receive the portions 
of the payments from the Revenue Fund to pay the interest and principal. Fifteen days prior to each payment 
date. the monies are to be transferred. The Trustee will use the monies on deposit in the Debt Service Fund 
to make principal and interest payments to the bondholders, as set forth in the agreement 

At December 31, 2024, the Pansh was in compliance with this covenant. 

I)ebt Service Reserve Fund - The bond ordinance requires that the Debt Service Reserve fund be created 
and maintained by the Trustee to receive funds from the Revenue Fund to comply with the reserve 
requirement of $415,218.76. Monies are to be transferred on the or before the 15th  day of the month 
following receipt of Pledged Revenues. As of December 31, 2024, the balance in this account is $461,290. 

At December 31, 2024, the Pansh was in compliance with this covenant. 

Revenue Fund - The bond ordinance requires the Trustee to maintain a Revenue Fund in which the Pledged 
revenues will be received. The Tmstee is required to make various transfers to other accounts throughout 
the year. After all required transfers. any funds remaining shall be transferred to the Residual Fund. 

At December 31, 2024, the Parish was in compliance with this covenant. 

Residual Fund — The bond ordinance requires the Trustee to maintain the Residual Fund to receive the 
balance of funds remaining in the Revenue Fund after making the required transfers. The Residual Fund 
shall be transferred to the Borrower on each November 1, beginning November 1, 21119. 

At December 31, 2024, the Parish was in compliance  with this covenant. 

Rebate Fund — The Rebate Fund shall be held by the Trustee but shall not be a trust account within the trust 
estate pledge under this Indenture. Monies on deposit shall be used to make rehate payments owed to the 
United State of America. 

At December 31, 2024, the Pansh was in compliance  with this covenant. 

12. I)edieatiou of Proceeds & Flow of Funds — Parish of Tangipahoa, State of Louisiana Revenue Bonds, 
Series 21119 

The Parish through its governing authority adopted an ordinance on December 18, 2019, authorizing the 
issuance of Parish of Tangiphoa, State of Louisiana Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 in the amount of $4,600.000 
for the purpose of (i) expanding and improving the Parish's municipal landfill (the "2019 Improvement 
Projects"): ( ii) refunding the Parish's Revenue Bond.s. Series 2013 (the "Refunded Bonds"): ( ) financing the 
costs of issuance of the Bonds; (iv) acquiring a municipal bond insurance policy: and ( v) funding a debt service 
reserve fund with a surety bond. In that ordinance, the Bonds will be payable from the income, revenues and 
receipts generated by Garhage District No. 1 of Tangipahoa Parish. If such revenues are not sufficient. General 
Fund revenues or unrestricted revenues of the Parish may be utilized. The ordinance authorized the issuance, 
sale. and delivery of the Bonds to Crews & Associates. Inc., Little Rock. Arkansas and authonzed the Parish 
President to execute a purchase agreement with Crews & Associates, Inc., within the parameters set forth by 
the ordinance. In that ordinance, certain funds are required to be estahlished and maintained with the Payin.c: 
Agent for the receipt and disbursement of Bond Proceeds. An analysis of these accounts is provided as follows: 
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Bond Proceeds Fund - The bond ordinance requires that a Bond Proceeds Fund be created to receive the 
proceeds of the Bonds, which will he used to pay costs of issuance, transfer an amount to the Refunding 
Fund sufficient to redeem all or a portion of the Series 2013 Bonds, and to either transfer to the Reserve 
Fund an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement or deposit a Reserve Fund Alternate Investment meeting 
the qualifications set forth in the ordinance, and to transfer the remaining balance to the Project Fund. 

At December 31. 2024, the Parish was in compliance with this covenant. 

Debt Service Fund — The bond ordinance requires that a Debt Service Fund be created to receive deposits 
five days prior to each Interest Payment Date of the amount required to make principal and interest 
payments due on such Interest Payment Date. The Paying Agent will then use the monies on deposit in the 
Debt Service Fund to make principal and interest payments to the bondholders, as set forth in the agreement. 

At December 31, 2024, the Parish was in compliance with this covenant. 

Project Fund — The bond ordinance requires that the Project Fund be established and maintained to receive 
the inunediate transfer of the balance of the proceeds of the honds as provided by the requirements of the 
Bond Ordinance. Monies in the Project Fund shall be applied to the payment of the costs of the 2019 
Project, and pending such application, shall be subject to a lien and charge in favor of the Bondholders for 
the further securitv of such Bondholders until paid out or transferred as provided in the ordinance. The 
ordinance requires that the money in the Project Fund be applied to the payment of the costs of the Project, 
except to the extent required to he transferred to the Rehate Fund in accordance with the Tax Certificate 
and, pending such application, shall be held as trust funds under this Ordinance until paid out or transferred. 
Money held in the project fund shall be paid out within three business days hy Whitnev Bank in order to 
pay, or to reimburse the Issuer for the payments made, for the costs of the 2019 Project upon receipt by 
Whitney Bank of the written request of the Parish in substantially the form included within the ordinance. 
Upon certification of an Executne Officer that all costs incurred in connection with the Project and in 
connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds have been paid, any balance remaining in the 
Project Fund shall he deposited into the Debt Service Fund. The Project as defined by T.P. Ordinance No. 
19-45 was completed during FYE December 31. 2023. 

At December 31, 2024, the Parish was in compliance with this covenant. 

Deht Service Reserve Fund — In lieu of funding the Reserve Fund with cash, the Issuer has purchased a 
Reserve Fund Alternate Investment issued by the Bond Insurer. Such Reserve Fund Alternate Investment 
shall be deposited with the Paying Agent and held in the Reserve Fund. 

At December 31, 2024, the Parish was in compliance with this covenant. 

13. Compliance with Road District No. 101 of the Parish of Tangipahoa. Louisiana General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2917 And Sub-Road District No. 1 of Road District No. 101 of the Parish of Tangipahoa, 
Louisiana General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 

The Parish through its governing authority adopted an ordinance on Febniary 13. 2017. authorizing the issuance 
of Road District No. 101 of the Parish of Tangipahoa. Louisiana General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 and 
Sub-Road District No. 1 of Road District No. 101 of the Parish of Tangipahoa, Louisiana General Ohligation 
Bonds, Series 2017 in the amount of 5392.800 and S362,300. respectively. for the purpose of (i) financing the 
construction and improvements of public roads, hiehways and brid2es: (ii) funding capitalized interest on the 
Series 2017 Bonds, and tiii) paying the costs of issuing the Series 2017 Bonds. Per the ordinances, thr Bonds 
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will be payable from ad valorem taxes to be levied and collected m the manner provided by Article VI. Section 
33 of the Constitution of the State of Louisiana of 1974, and statutory authority supplemental thereto with an 
estimated three (3) rnills for each district to be levied in the first year to provide for the payrnent of principal 
and interest on said bonds. The major covenants contained in the bond ordinance and agreements and the 
manner in which the Parish has complied with these covenants is described as follows. 

Authorization of Bonds. Maturities — The Bonds shall be in fully reeistered form, shall be issued in 
Authorized denominations within a single maturity. and shall be nurnbered consecutively frorn R-1 upward. 
The unpaid principal of the Bonds shall bear interest from the date thereof or from the most recent Interest 
Payment Date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, payable on each Interest Payment Date, 
commencing September 1, 2017, at not to exceed 4.00% per annum, or such lesser amount as set forth 
therein, and shall mature seriallv on March 1 of each year (with a final maturity on March I, 2037) in 
arnounts as set forth in the Purchase Agreement. 

The Parish was in cornpliance with this covenant. 

Registration with Secretary of State — The Bonds shall be registered with the Secretary of State of the State 
of Louisiana as provided by law and shall bear the endorsement of the Secretary of State of Louisiana in 
suhstantially the form set forth herein, provided such endorsement shall be manually signed only on the 
Bonds initially delivered to the purchaser. and any Bonds subsequently exchanged therefore as permitted 
in this Ordinance may bear the facsimile signature of said Secretary of State. 

The Parish was in compliance with this covenant. 

Plelle of Full Faith and Credit, Tax Levy — The Bonds shall constitute general obligations of the Issuer, 
and the full faith and credit of the Issuer is hereby pledged to the punctual payment of the Bonds in 
accordance with the authority of Article VL Section 33 of the Constitution of the State of Louisiana of 
1974, and constitutional and statutory authority supplemental thereto. The Issuer oblieates itself and is 
bound under the terms and provisions of law and the election authorizing the Bond to irnpose and collect 
annually in excess of all other taxes the Tax on all property subject to taxation within the territorial limits 
of the Issuer sufficient to pay principal of and interest On the Bonds t'alling due in each year, said Tax to he 
levied and collected by the same officers, in the same manner and at the same time as other taxes are levied 
and collected within the terntorial limits of the Issuer. The proceeds of such Tax shall be devoted and 
applied to the payment of said interest and principal as such shall become due and without further action 
on the part of the Governing Authority. the proper officer or officers are hereby authorized and directed, 
beginning with the year 2017, to include in the annual levy of taxes upon, and to extend upon the assessment 
rolls against, all taxahle property situated within the territorial limits of the Issuer, a sum sufficient to pay 
the principal ot, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds beconung due the ensuing year. 

The Parish was in compliance  with this covenant. 

14. Compliance with Parish of Tangipahoa, State of Louisiana Lucal Government Environmental Facilities 
and Community Development AuthoritY Revenue Bonds (Tangipahoa Parish GoMESA Project), Series 
2018 (Green Bonds) 

The Parish through its governing authority adopted an ordinance on November 13, 2018. authorizing the Parish 
to proceed with a not to exceed $9,000.000 financing through the Louisiana Local Government Environmental 
Facilities and Community Development Authority: authorizing and ratifying the Parish's request of the 
Louisiana Local Government Enyironrnental Facilities and Community Development Authority to issue its 
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ret enue bonds; authorizing the borrowing by the Parish of the proceeds from the sale thereof to finance qualified 
GOMESA prgiects and providing for the repayment of and security therefore: approving and ratifying within 
certain parameters the terms of the sale of the bonds; authorizing the form and execution of the Loan and 
Assignment Agreement; authorizing the form of and execution of an agreement for the purchase of the bonds 
and ancillary tinancing documents. 

The Parish does hereby irrevocably and irrepealahly pledge and dedicate GOMESA Revenues distributed to 
the Parish as Pledged Revenues in an amount sufficient for the payment of its obligations pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement. 

Postine on EMMA — In accordance with the designation of the bonds as "Green Bonds," the Parish plans 
to post voluntary annual updates on the use of proceeds of the Bonds annually on EMMA. Once the 
proceeds have been expended, no fiirther updates will be provided. 

Amounts Remaining in Funds and Accounts - It is agreed by the parties hereto that any amounts remaining 
in the funds and accounts existing pursuant to the indenture upon the expiration or sooner cancellation or 
termination of the agreement. after payment in full of all bonds then outstanding under the indenture (or 
provisions for payment thereof having been made in accordance with the provisions of the indenture), and 
the fees, charges and expenses of the authority and the trustee and all amount required to be paid hereunder 
and under the indenture shall belong to and be paid to the borrower. 

15. Compliance with Parish of Tangipahoa, State of Louisiana Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 

The Parish complied with the covenants contained in the bond resolution and agreement are fi-ir the year ended 
December 31, 2024. 

16. Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Costs 

State and federal laws and regulations require the Parish to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops 
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after 
closure. In addition to operating expenses relating to current activities of the landfill, an expense provision and 
related liability are being recognized based on the future closure and post-closure care costs that will he incurred 
near or after the date the landfill no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill closure and post-
closure care costs is hased on the amount of the landfill used during the year. The estimated liability for landfill 
closure and post-closure care costs is $3,438,874 as of December 31, 2024, which is based on 71.49% usage 
(filled) of the landfill. The percentage usage reflects an update in the engineenng estimate of percentage usage, 
and the related estimated liability for landfill closure and post-closure costs required by the Louisiana 
Department of Environmental Quality (LDEQ) regulations for post-closure care of solid waste facilities. It is 
estimated that $-O- will be recognized as closure and post-closure care expenses hetween the date of the financial 
statements and the date the landfill is expected to be filled to capacity in 10.9 years (November 2035). The 
estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and post-closure care costs of $4,810.000 is based on the 
aniount that would be paid (with year 20)7 dollars) if all equipment, facilities, and services required to close, 
monitor, and maintain the landfill were acquired as of December 31, 2024. However. the actual cost of closure 
and post-closure care may be higher due to intlation or deflation, changes in technology, or chanees in landfill 
laws and regulations. In addition, total closure and post-closure costs, as well as estimates of percentage usage 
of the landfill, will change as any additional cells are permitted to accept additional waste The aforementioned 
dollar amounts are based on information provided by Fourrier & de Abreu Engineers, LLC. 
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The Parish anticipates that the liability for closure and post-closure cost will be funded on a "pay-as-you-go 
basis." if allowed. The management of the Parish understands that it satisfies the Local Government financial 
test due to meeting the financial ratio thresholds. 

17. Employee Retirernent Systems 

Substantially all employees of the Parish are members of one of the following statewide retirement systems: 
Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System of 
Louisiana, or the District Attorneys' Retirement System. These systems are cost-sharing multiple-employer, 
delined benefit pension plans administered by separate hoards of trustees 

Part-time employees of the Parish are members of the social security system. In addition to employee payroll 
deductions, Parish funds are remitted to match the employee contributions. Aggregate contrihutions to the 
social security system for the year ended December 31. 2024, were $111.252 of which $55,626 was contributed 
by the Parish. 

A. Parochial Employees' Retirement System of LouiNiana. 

Plan I)esrription — Substantially all full-time employees of the Parish are members of the Parochial 
Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana ("PERS"), a multi-employer (cost sharing), public employee 
retirement system, controlled, and administered by a separate board of trustees. PERS is composed of two 
(2) distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All employees of the 
Parish are members of Plan A. 

All permanent employees working at least 28 hours per week who are paid wholly or in part from Parish 
funds and all elected Parish officials are eligible to participate in PERS. New employers meeting the age 
and social security criteria have up to 90 days from their date of hire to elect to participate Under Plan A, 
the eligibility provisions are as follows: 

• For employees hired prior to January 1. 2007: 
o Any age with thirty (30) or more years of creditable service 
o Age 55 with twenty-five (25) years of creditable service 
o Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) years of creditahle sen ice 
o Age 65 with a minimum of seven (7) years of creditable service 

• For employees hired after January I, 2007. 
o Age 55 with 30 years of service 
0 Age 62 with 1() years of sen ice 
o Age 67 with 7 years of service 

The retirement allowance is equal to 3.01!.• of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his 
years of creditable service. Final average compensation shall be detined as the average of the highest 
consecutive 36 months' salary for members hired prior to January 1. 2007. For members hired 
January 1. 2007, and later. final average compensation shall be defined as the average of the highest 
consecutive 60 months' salary. 
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Any employee who was a member of the supplemental plan only prior to the revision date (January 1, 1980) 
has the benefit earned for service credited prior to the revision date on the basis of 1.0% of final 
compensation plus two dollars per month for each year credited prior to the revision date. and 3.0% of final 
compemation plus two dollars per month for each year credited prior to the revision date, and 3.0% of final 
compensation for each year of service credited after the revision date. The retirement allowance may not 
exceed the greater of 100.0% of a member's final salary or the final averaL,e compensation. 

Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated above and do not withdraw 
their employee contrihutions may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their 
date of termination. PERS also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by state 
statute 

Employers shall pay the actuarial cost of leave conversion at the time of retirement for those members 
enrolled January 1, 2007, and later 

PERS issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary mfonnation for PERS. That report may be obtained hy writing to PERS, Post Office Box 
14619, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 7(189)3-4619, or by calling (225) 928-1361. 

Funding Policy — Under Plan A. members are required by state statute to contribute 9.5% of their annual 
covered salary and the Parish is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The rate for 2024 
is 11.50% of annual covered payroll. Contributions to PERS also include one fourth of one percent (except 
Orleans and East Baton Rouge Parishes) of the taxes shown to be collectible hy the tax rolls of each Parish. 
These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan B based proportionately on the salaries of the active 
members of each plan The contribution requirements of plan members and the Parish are established and 
may be amended by state statute. As provided by LRS 11.103. the employer contributions are determined 
by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results uf the valuation for the prior 
year. The Parish's contributions to PERS under Plan A for the vears ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 
2022 were $2.050,1)41, $2,038,950. and $1.884,316, respectively, equal to the required contributions for 
each year. 

Pension Liability (Asset), Pension Expense. and Deterred (I)uttlows of Resources and Deterred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions — At December 31_2024, the Parish reported a liability of $2,330,490 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of 
December 31, 2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Parish's proportion of the net pension liahility was based on 
a projection of the Parish's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contnbutions of all participants, actuarially determined. At December 31. 2023, the Parish's proportion 
was 2.446138%. 
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For the vear ended December 31, 2024. the Pansh recognized pension expense of $941,500. At 
December 31, 2024, the Parish reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the followmg sources. 

 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Drferrrd 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 1.103,558 $ 625550 
Chansies in Assumptions 3,755.922 

 

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on 
Pension Phn Investments 

 

406.0'0 
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between Parish 

Contrthutions and Proportionate Share of Contrbutions 26 336 31,718 
Parish Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 2,050,041 

  

$ 6.935,857 $ 1.063,288 

$2,050,041 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Parish 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will he recognized as a reduction of thr nrt pension 
liability (asset) in the year ended December 31, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 

Year Ended: 
December 31, 2024 
December 31,10)5 
December 31, 20)6 
Dec ember 31, 2027 
Thereafter 

$ 325.608 
1,864,716 
3,160,993 

(1,526,649) 
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Actuarial Assumptions  — The total pension liabihty in the December 31, 2023, actuarial valuation was 
determined usinu the Ibllowing actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Expected Remaining Service Life 
Investment Rate of Return 
Salary Increases 
Cost of Living Agiustments 

Mortality 

December 31, 2023 
Entry Age Normal 
4 Years 
6.401343, Net of Investment Expense Including Inflation 
4.75% (Incbding merit and 2.30% infbnon) 

The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the System and includes 
previously granted cost of living increases. The present values 
do not inckide provisions for potential future increases not yet 
authorized by the Board of Trustees. 
Pub-2010 Public Retirement Pktns Mortalitv Table for Health 
Retirees multiplied by 130% tbr males and 125% for females 
using MP2021 scale tbr annuitant and beneficiary mortality. For 
employees, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for General Employees multiplied by 130% for males and 
125% for females using MP2021 scale. Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Diiabled Retirees 
multiplied by 130% for males and 125% for females using 
MP 2021 scale fl.lr disabled annuitants. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2023, valuation (excluding Mortality) was based on 
actuarial funding valuation and results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2013, to 
December 31, 2017, unless otherwise specified. 

The long-tenn expected real rate of return on pension plan inv estments was detennined using a triangulation 
method in which integrated the capital asset pricing model (top-down), a treasury yield curve approach 
(bottom-up) and an equity building-block model (bottom-up). Risk return and correlations are projected 
on a fonvard-looking basis in equilibrium, in which hest estimates of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are dev eloped for each major asset 
class. These rates are combined to produce the lone-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.40% 
and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of 
return is 7.50% for the year ended December 31, 2023. 
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Best estimates of anthmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS's target asset 
allocation as of December 31, 2023, are sununarized in the following table: 

Asset Chss  

Long-Te rrn 
Expected 

Target Real Rate of 
Allocation Return      

Fixed income 33.OO% 1.12% 
Equity 51.OO% 3.2O% 
A hernanves 14.OO% O.67% 
Real Assets 2.o(nO O.11% 

Total 1OO.00N 5.1O% 

Inflation 
Expected Arithrnetic Nominal Return   

2.4O% 
7.5O% 

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.40% for Plan A. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions front plan members 
will he made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers and non-
employer contributing, entities will be made at the actuarially determined contribution rates, which are 
calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by the Board of Tntstees and the Public 
Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on those assumptions, PERS's fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all projected future benetit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benetit payments to determine total pension liability. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate — The followine presents the net pension liability (asset) of the 
participating employers calculated using the discount rate of 6.40%. as well as what the employers' net 
pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point 
lower (5.40%) or one percentage point higher (7.40%) than the current rate. 

1.00'1O Current 1.00% 
Decrease Rate Increase 
(5.4OP-.) (6.4(Y?,.) (7.4OP1)  

Net Pension Liability $ 16,628,468 S 2.330.490 S (9,671.243) 
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B. Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement Svstem of Louisiana 

Plan Dewript ion - The Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirement System ("ROVERS") is a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established in accordance by Act 215 of 1954, under 
LRS 11:2032, to provide retirement allowances and other benetits for registrars of voters, their deputies, 
and their permanent employees in each Parish of the State of Louisiana. 

ROVERS was estabhshed on January 1. 1955 for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other 
benefits as stated under the provisions. of LRS 11:2032, as amended, for registrars of voters, their deputies, 
and their permanent employees in each Parish. The prolection of benefit payments in the calculation of the 
total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees through 
ROVERS in accordance with the benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that 
are in force at the measurement date. 

Any member hired pnor to January 1, 2013 is eligible for normal retirement after he has 20 vears of 
creditable service and is age 55 or has 10 years of creditable service and is age 60. Any meniber with 30 
years of creditable service regardless of age may retire. Regular retirement benefits for members hired 
prior to January 1, 2013 are calculated at 3.33% of the average annual earned compensation for the highest 
consecutive 60 month, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service, not to exceed 100% of 
average annual compensation. 

Any member hired on or after January 1, 2013 is eligible for normal retirement afier he has attained 30 
years of creditable service and is age 55: has attained 20 years of creditahle service and is age 60: or has 
attained 10 years of creditable semce and is age 62. Regular retirement benefits for members hired on or 
after January 1, 2013 are calculated at 3.01)% of the average annual earned compensation for the hiehest 
consecutive 60 months multiplied by the number of years of creditable service, not to exceed 100% of 
average annual compensation. Retirement benefits thr members hired on or after January 1. 2013 that ha‘ e 
attained 30 years of creditable service with at least 20 years of creditable service in ROVERS are calculated 
at 3.33% of the average annual compensation for the highest consecutive 60 months multiplied by the 
number of years of creditable service, not to exceed 100% of average annual compensation. 

Any member whose withdrawal from service occurs prior to attaining the age of 60 years, who sball have 
completed 10 or more years of creditable service and shall not have received a refund of his accumulated 
contributions, shall become eligible for a deferred allowance beginning upon his attaining the age of 60 
years. 

Disability benetits are provided to active contributing members with at least 10 years of service established 
in ROVERS and who have been officially certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. The 
disahled member who has attained the age of 60 years shall he entitled to a regular retirement allowance. 

The disabled member who has not yet attained age 60 shall he entitled to a disability benefit equal to the 
lesser of 3.I10% of his average tinal compensation multiplied by the number of creditable years of service 
(not to be less than 15 years) or 3.33% of average tinal compensation multiplied hy the years of service 
assuming continued service to age 60. Disability benefits may not exceed two-thirds of eamable 
compensation. 

RC)VERS issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for ROVERS. That report may be obtained hy writing to ROVERS, Post Office 
Box 1959, Gonzales, Louisiana 70707, or by calling (?25) 647-7911. 
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Funding Policy - Contributions for all members are established by statute at 7.0% of compensation for the 
years ended June 30. 2024 and 2023. The contrihutions are deducted from the member's salary and remitted 
by the Parish. 

According to state statute, contribution requirements tor all employers are actuarially determined each year. 
For the vears ended June 30. 2024 and 2023, the actual employer contribution rates were 18.00%. The 
actual rate differs from the actuarially required rate due to state statutes that require the contribution rate he 
calculated and set two years prior to the year effective. Contributions to ROVERS from the Parish for the 
years ending December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022. were $19,484, $18,256, and $17,520. 

In accordance with state statute, ROVERS also receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. 
These additional sources of income are used as employer contributions and are considered support from 
non-employer contributing entities, but are not considered special funding situations. Non-employer 
contributions are recognized as revenue and excluded from pension expense for the year ended 
December 31, 2024. 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outilm% s of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions - At December 31, 2024, the Parish reported a liability of S79.833 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability The net pension liahility was measured as of June 30, 2024, 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The Parish's proportion of the net pension liahility was based on a projection of 
the Parish's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all participants, actuarially determined. At December 31, 2024, the Parish's proportion was 0.725701% 

For the year ended December 31. 2024, the Parish recognized pension expense of $45,054. 

At Decemher 31. 2024, the Parish reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Re,,ouree!-, 

De ferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Everience ti 2.974 S 12,285 
Chanees in Assumptions 

  

13,629 
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on 

Pension Plan Investments 

 

2,163 

 

C'han€zs In Proportion and Differences Between Parish 
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contrbutions 

 

12,297 9.471 

Parish Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 

 

9,65S 

   

27,092 S 35,385 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Parish's contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date of the net pension liability but hefore the end of the governmental non-employer 
contribution reporting period will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent 
period rather than in the current period. 

$9.658 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Parish contributions 
suhsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
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ended December 31, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended: 
December 31. 20'5 $ (12312) 
December 31, "0"6 18,378 
December 31, "0"7 (14,522) 
Dec ember 31, 2028 (9,40S) 
Thereafter 

Actuanal Assumptions — The total pension liabihty m the June 30. 2024, actuarial 1, aluation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement. 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Expected Remainine Service Life 
Investment Rate of Return 
Infhtion Rate 
Projected Salary Increase 
Mortality Rates 

June 30, 2024 
Entry Age Normal 
5 Years 
6.25%, Net of Investment Expense 
2.30% per annum 
5."5% 

Employees, Annuitants, and Benefichries — RP-2010 Public 
Retirement Plans Mortality Table fbr General Employees or for 
General Healthy Retirees multiplied by 120% for maks and 
120% for females each with full generational projection using 
the appropriate MP-2019 improvement scale. 

Disabled Annuitants — RP-2010 Puhlic Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for General Disabled Retirees multiplied by 
120% fbr males and 120% for femaks each with full 
generational projec tion using the appropriate MP-2019 
The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the System and inchides 
previously granted cost of living increases. The present values 
do not inch& provisions for potential future increases not yet 
authorized by the Board of Trustees as they were deemed not to 
be substantively automatic. 

Cost of Living Adjustments 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension 
plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected intlation. The resulting long-term 
rate of return is 8.37% for the year ended June 30, 2024. 
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Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in each of the pension 
plans' target asset allocation as of June 30. 2024. are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Chss 

Target 

Allocation 

Real Return 

Arithmetic 

Basis 

Long-Te rrn 

Expected 

Real Rate of 

Return 

Domestic Equities 37.50% 7.50% 2.81% 

Internal Equities 20.00% 8.50% 1.70% 

Domestic Fixed Income 11.50"•0 2.50% 0.56% 

International Fixed Income 10.00% 3.50% 0.35% 

Real Estate M00% 4.50% 0.45% 

Total 100.00'''. 

 

5.870,,, 

In fh tion 

  

2.50% 

Expected Nominal Return 

  

8.37% 

Discount Rate — The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions 
from plan members will be made at the current contrihution rates and that contributions from participating 
employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration 
the recommendation of each of ROVERS's actuaries. Based on those assumptions, each of ROVERS's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate used 
to measure the total pension liability was 6 25% for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Sensitivity to C'hanges in Discount Rate — The following presents the net pension liability • asset of the 
participating employers calculated using the discount rate of 6.25%. as well as what the employers' net 
pension liabilitv asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point 
lower (5.25%) or one percentage point hig,her (7.25%) than the current rate. 

1.00% Cuirent 1.00% 

Decrease Rate Increase 
(5. 1 50,O (G?11" ,1 (7.25%) 

Net Pension Liability `; 195.175 S 79,833 1; (18394) 

C. I)istnrt Attorney's Retirement System of Louisiana 

Plan Descriptton — The District Attorney Retirernent System ("DARS"), State of Louisiana is the 
administrator of a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. DARS was estahlished on 
April 1, 1956 and was placed under the management of the board of trustees for the purpose of providing 
retirement allowances and other benefits as stated under the provisiuns of LRS 11, Chapter 3 for district 
attorneys and their assistants in each Parish. 

All persons who are district attorneys of the State of Louisiana. assistant district attorneys in any Parish of 
the State of Louisiana, or employed by DARS and the Louisiana District Attorney:: Association except for 
elected or appointed officials who have retired front service under any publicly funded retirement system 
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within the state and who are currently receiving benefits, shall become members as a condition of their 
employment; provided, however. that in the case of assistant district attorneys, they must he paid an amount 
not less than the minimum salary specified by the board for assistant district attorneys. currently $18,000 
per year. The projection of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all 
benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees through DARS in accordance with the 
benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement 
date. 

Members who joined DARS before July 1, 1990, and who have elected not to be covered by the new 
provisions. are eligible to recei‘e a normal retirement benefit if they have 10 or more years of creditable 
service and are at least age 62, or if they have 18 or more years of service and are at least age 60, or if they 
have 23 or more years of service and are at least aee 55, or if they have 30 years of service regardless of 
age. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 3% of the member's average final compensation for each 
year of creditable service. Members are eligible for early retirement at age 60 if they have at least 10 years 
of creditable service or at age 55 with at least 18 vears of creditable service. Members who retire prior to 
age 60 with, less than 23 year of service credit, receive a retirement henetit reduced 3% for each year of 
age below 60. Members who retire prior to age 62 who have less than 18 years of ser‘ ice receive a 
retirement benefit reduced 3% for each year of age below 62. Retirement henetits may not exceed 100% 
of final average compensation. 

Members who joined DARS after July 1, 1990, of who elected to be covered by the new provisions, are 
eligible to receive normal retirement benefits if they are age 60 and hme 10 years of service credit, are age 
55 and have 24 years of service credit, or have 30 years of service credit regardless of age The normal 
retirement benefit is equal to 3.5% of the member's final average compensation multiplied by years of 
membership service A member is eligible for an early retirement benefit if he is age 55 and has 18 years 
of service credit. The early retirement benefit is equal to the normal retirement benefit reduced 3% for each 
year the member retires in ath mice of nomial retirement age. Benefits rnay not exceed MO% of average 
final compensation 

Disability benefits are awarded to active contributing members with at least 10 years of service who are 
found to be totally disabled because of injuries incurred while in active service. The member receives a 
benefit equal to 3.0% (3.5% for members covered under the new retirement benefit provisions) of his 
average final compensation multiplied by the lesser of his actual service (not to be less than 15 years) or 
projected continued service to age 60. 

DARS issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for DARS. That report may be obtained by writing to the DARS, 2525 Quail 
I)r., Baton Rouge. Louisiana 70808-9042, or by calling (225) 267-4824. 

Fundine Policy — Contributions for all members are established hy statute at 8.0% of compensation for the 
years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. The contributions are deducted from the member's salary and remitted 
by the Parish 

According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined each year. 
For the years ended June 30. 2024 and 2023, the actual employer contribution rates were 12.000.;. and 
12.25%. The actual rate differs froin the actuarially required rate due to state statutes that require the 
contribution rate be calculated and set two years prior to the year effective. Contributions to the pension 
plan from the Parish for the years ended December 31. 2024, 2023, and 2022 were $45,332, $39.510, and 
$32,649 
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In accordance with state statute, DARS receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds. These 
additional sources of income are used as employer contributions and are considered support from non-
ernployer contributing entities. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue and excluded from 
pension expense tor the year ended December 31, 2024. 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions — At December 31. 2024, the Parish reported a liabilitv of $252,989 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension habihty. The net pension habihty was measured as ofkine 30, 2024, 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The Parish's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of 
the Parish's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all participants, actuarially determined. At December 31. 2024. the Parish's proportion was 0.526393% 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Parish recognized pension expense of 589,997. At 
December 31. 2024, the Parish reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources. 

 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

De ferred 

Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 5 16.249 S 15.279 
Changes in Assumptions 

  

79,856 
Net Difference Between Prolected and Actual Earnings on 

Pension Plan Investments 

 

34,571 

 

Chan€eti in Proportion and Differences Between Parish 
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contrbutions 

 

14201 7,98O 
Parish Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 

 

22,762 

   

87.783 $ 103.115 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Parisli's contributions suhsequent to 
the measurement date of the net pension liability but before the end of the eovernmental non-employer 
contribution reporting period will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent 
period rather than in the current period. 

522,762 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Parish contributions 
suhsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
ended December 31. 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended: 
December 31, 2025 S 4,748 
December 31, 2026 41,g84 
December 31, 2027 (53,749) 
December 31, 2028 (30,862) 
Thereafter 
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Actuarial Assumptions  — The total pension liabihty in the June 30. 2024, actuarial 1, aluation was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement. 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Expected Remaining Service Life 
Investment Rate of Return 
Infhtion Rate 
Projected Salary Increase 
Mortality Rates 

Cost of L Rio A•tustments  

June 30, 2024 
Entry A€e Normal Cost 
4 Years 
6.10%, Net of Pension Plan Investment Expense, with infhtion 
2.30% per annum 
5.00% (2.80% Merit, 2.20% Inflation) 

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Phns Mortality Table for General 
Above-Median Employees mukiplied by 115% for males and 
females for current employees, each with fitll generational 
projection using the MP2019 scale. 

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General 
Above-Median Heahhy Retirees multiplied by 115% for males 
and females for annuitants and beneficiaries, each with full 
generationalprojection using the MP2019 scale. 

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Phns Mortality Table for General 
Disabled Retirees multiplied by 115% for males and females for 
disabled retirees, each wiih full generational projection using the 
MP2019 scale. 
Only those previously granted 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best estimates ranges of expected future real rates of retttrn (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expected and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected intlation. The resulting long-term 
rate of return is 7.80% for the year ended June 30, 2024 
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Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in DARS's target asset 
allocation as of June 30, 2024 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Tar€et Asset 

A lloc a Lion 

Long-Term Expected 

Rates of Return 

Real NOIllitla 

Equities: 

   

Domestic Equity 45.00% 7.50% 

 

International Equity 5.00% 8.50% 

 

Fixed Income 

   

Domestic 31.50% 2.50% 

 

International M00% 3.50% 

 

Akernatives 7.50% 4.50% 

 

System Total 

  

5.30% 

Inflation 

  

1 .50% 

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

   

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.10%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made 
at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially detennined rates, approved by the PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of 
DARS'S actuary. Based on those assumptions, DARS's fiduciary net position was projected to be availahle 
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore. the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was apphed to all periods of projected henefit payments to 
determine total pension hability. 

Sensitivity to Changes in I)iscoimt Rate - The following presents the net pension liability asset of the 
participating employers calculated using the discount rate of 6 10%, as well as what the employers' net 
pension liability asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point 
lower (5.10%) or one percentage point higher (7.10%) that the current rate. 

1.00% 

Decrease 

(5.10%) 

Current 

Rate 

(6.1(1%) 

1.00% 

Increase 
(7.1(M) 

Net Pension Liability $ 657,581 252,989 $ (86,459) 

18. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Parish offers its employees two deferred compensation plans adopted under the provisions of the Internal 
Revenue Code 457. One plan, with Nationwide Retirement Solutions, Inc. (formerly Public Employees 
Benefits Service Corporation). is available to all Parish employees and permits them to defer a portion of their 
salaries until future years. No portion of this deferred compensation is paid by the Parish. The other plan. with 
State of Louisiana Deferred Compensation Plan, is available only to those employees who are not members of 
PERS. This plan also permits eligible Parish employees to defer a portion of their salaries until future years. 
The Parish pays 7.5% of the eligible employees' salaries into this plan. 
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The deferred compensation of both plans is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or 
unforeseeable emergency 

Coinplete disclosures relating to the State of Louisiana Deferred Compensation Plan are included in the 
separately issued audit report tbr the State of Louisiana Deferred Compensation Plan, available from the 
Louisiana Legislatne Auditor. Post Office Box 94397. Baton Rouge. Louisiana 70804-9397. 

During 2023. the Parish contributed a total of $68,989 to the State of Louisiana Deferred Compensation Plan. 

19. Other Posternplonient Health Care Benefits 

Plan Description - In accordance with Ordinance 06-26 adopted on May 8, 2006, employees who retire from 
the Parish with at least 7 years of service may qualify for participation in the Retirement Group Imurance Plan 
(RGIP). RGIP is a self-administered, single-employer, defined benefit plan. RGIP provides medical benefits 
to eligihle retirees and their spouses. The participant must also have been covered under the Employee Group 
Insurance Plan for at least one year pnor to retirement. A plan participant may only select coverage up to the 
extent that the participant had coverage under the Employee Group Insurance Plan prior to retirement. The 
participant may reduce coverage but may not increase coverage RGIP does not issue stand-alone financial 
reports. but includes the RGIP Net Position in the fiduciary fiind statements and presents the Net OPEB Liability 
in the noncurrent liabilities section of the statement of Net Position. 

Employees Covered— As of the January 1, 2024 actuarial valuation, the following current and thriller employees 
were covered by the benefit terms under the RGIP Plan: 

Active Einployees 328 

Retirees 49 
Beneficiaries 1 
Spouses of Retirees 20 

Total 398 

Contributions — The Parish's portion of the post-retirement benefit is as follows. 

Years of Service Parish Portion 

7 - 9 None 

10 - 14 25% of the total premium up to 5350 per month 
15 or More 50% of the total prenuum up to 5500 per month 

Once the participant and spouse are eli2ible for Medicare, the participant can elect to move to the Parish 
Medicare Supplement Plan. If elected, the Parish will pay W0% of the premium up to 5350 per month. 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Parish's cash contnbutions were S725,288 in payments to the trust. 
In 2018, the Parish created the Tangipahoa Parish Retiree Benefits Funding Trust with Hancock Whitney Trust 
and Asset Management for the purpose of prefundmg ohligations for past services. 
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — The Net OPEB liability in the December 31, 2024 1, aluation was 
determined using the folkiwing actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, 
unless otherwise specified. 

Discount Rate 
Salary Increass 
Inflation Rate 
Medical Trend Rate 
Employee Mortality 

4.08'.% per annum 
4.25%, including inflation 
2.30% per annum 
2.50% to 7.40% 

Sex distinct PubG.H-2010 projected forward (fully generational) 
with MP-2021. Pub-201i) tahles for disabled lives and contingent 
survivors are also used. 

The discount rate for calculating the net OPEB liability is based on the Bond Buyer's 20-year General 
Obligation Index immediately prior to or coincident with the measurement date. 

Changes in Net OPEB Liabihtt 

 

Total OPEB 
Liability 

Chanee in 
Plan 

Fiduciary 
Net Position 

Net OPEB 

Balances as of December 31, 2023 $ 6,162,773 _',>≥6,79? $ 3,625,981 
Charges for the Year: 

   

Service Cost 229,284 

 

1 29,/84 
Interest on Total OPEB Liabahty 204,940 

 

204,940 
Effect of Plan Changes 

   

Effect of Economic Demographic Gains • Losses 2,309,504 

 

2.309,504 
Effect of Assumptions Changes of Inputs (228,319) 

 

(228,319) 
Benefit Payments (212.841) O12.841) 

 

Employer Contributions 

 

725,288 (725,288) 
Net Investment Income 

 

114,412 (114,412) 
Administrative Expenses 

 

(22.181) 22,181 

Balances as of December 31, 2024 $ 8,465.341 $ 3.141.470 S 5,37'3.871 

Sensitivity Analysis — The following presents the Parish's net OPEB liahility calculated using the discount rate 
of 4.089'6, as well as what the Parish's net OPEB liability would he if it were calculated usine a discount rate 
that is 1 percentage point lower (3.081!-0) or 1 percentage point higher (5.08%) than the current discount rate: 

1.00% 
Decrease 
O.08%) 

Current 
Rate 

I 4. 08°.•;,) 

1.00% 

Increase 
(5.081.0 

Net OPEB Liability 6,231,558 $ 5.323.871 $ 4.551,712 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liahilitv to ( hamles in Healthcare Cost Trends Rate — The following presents 
the Parish's net OPER liability calculated usim2 the euiTent healtheare cost trend rates as well as what the 
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Parish's net OPEB liabihtv would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one 
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 

l.000 •,; 

Decrease 
Current 

Trend Rate 
1.0()% 

llIcreaSe 

Net OPEB Liability $ 5,101.096 S 5.323.871 $ 5.548,219 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflow of Resources 
Related to OPEB — The Paiish's net OPEB liability of $5,323,871 was measured as of December 31, 2024 and 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2024. 

For the year ended December 31. 2(124, the Parish recognized OPEB expense of $827,281. 

As of December 3 2024. the Parish reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred 
(Inflows) of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience $ (70(,,480) $ 3,107,225 
Changes in Assumptions (926.844) 734,703 
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings 

 

87,397 

 

(1.633.324) $ 3.929.325 

Amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred intlows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Ended: 

 

December 31 70'5 $ 487,237 
December 31, 2026 297,386 
December 31, 2027 270,457 
December 31. 7028 392,334 
December 31. 2029 377,121 
Therea fler 471,465 
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20. Fund Balances 

Fund balances for governmental funds as of December 31, 2024, consist of the following. 

Res tricteil. 

Geneial 

Fund 

Rom] and 

Bridge 

Funds 

Garbage 

District 

No l Fund 

Industrial 

Dev 

Fund 

CIAP Other 

Pioject Govt. 

Fund Funds 

     

Grant Provisions $ 1,134,777 $ $ - $ S 1,946.244 

Ptopeity Tax M illatv - - 4,277.316 

 

6,671.047 
Sales Tax Levy - 26,6fs3.0% - 

  

Debt Service 7,890,591 - 360 

 

152..fs28 

Juror and Witness Fees - 

   

37.247 

Committed: 

     

Rainy Day Fund 2.057,725 

    

Industrial Dev. Biased 

   

1.717.313 

 

Assigned: 

     

Health Reimbursement 137.747 163388 ll.,12:4 

 

115.022 

Keep Tangipahoa Beautiful 

 

- 

  

526.048 

Ammal ['cttail - - 

 

- 179.546 
Florida Parishes Arena 

    

27.394 

Unassigned 10.111,130 

   

(155.9771 

 

V"1.3$6.970 ""6.8:16.8S,4 $ 4.319.60:1 S 1.717.313 S S 9.500,29C) 

21. Restricted Net Position 

As of Decetnber 31, 2024, eovemmental activities had restricted net position as explained below: 

Net Position Restricted by Enabling Legi.kition for • 
Parish Government Reserve Fund (Ordinance 13-40) S 2057,725 
Saks Tax Levy (C)rdinance 21-05) - 75% Restricted for Road & Bridge 26,683,096 
Property Tax Levy 

 

Parish Landfill Operations 4,277,816 
Parish Health Unit Operations 4,777,380 
Road Lighting Projects 1,893,667 
Debt Service 152,828 

Witness Fees (LRS 15:255) 1,535 
Juror Per Diem Fees (LRS 13:3049) 35,712 
Industrial Development Board 1,717.313 

Net Position Otherwise Restricted for: 

 

Debt Service 7,890,951 
Grants 3,136,021 
Health Reimbursement Accounts 457.985 

Total Restricted Net Position S 5302,029 
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/1. Restated Net Position 

The heginning net position of Governmental Activities has been restated: 

Net Position at December 31, 2023 
Adµx.Stment to Bz€•irn>IIig Compensated Absences 

Net Position at December 31, 2(123. as Restated 

$ 271.541447 
097,589) 

S 270.545.858     

As a result of the above prior period adjustments, the Net Position for the year ended December 31, 2023 has 
been adjusted from $271.543,447 to $270,545.858. a difference of ($997.589). 

23. Tax Abatements 

The Louisiana Industrial Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Program ("ITEr) is an original state incentive program 
that offers attractive tax incentive tor manufacturers within the state. The progam abates, for up to ten years, 
local property taxes (ad valorem) on a manufacturer's new investment and annual capitalized additions related 
to the manufacturing site. This exemption is granted per contract with the Louisiana Department of Economic 
Development and will specify the buildings and ; or personal property items covered by the exemption. There 
are currently nineteen tax abatements in Tangipahoa Parish, related to eleven companies. under the Louisiana 
ITEP. For the 2024 calendar year, the estimated forgone ad valorem taxes due to this abatement program was 
$27,198. 

24. Cherry Point Development, LLC 

Tangipahoa Parish Housing Authority, through its governing entity, the Parish, formed a Louisiana Limited 
Liability Company — Cherry Point Development, LLC — as a 51% member on February 11. 2013. Cherry Point 
Development, LLC is the developer of a project located in Hammond, Louisiana, and to be known as Cherry 
Point Subdivision The Parish will receive 51% of the payable developer fee. As per the detinition in the 2013 
Qualified Allocation Plan, Cheny Point Development. LLC does qualify as a Public Housing Agency project. 
The Parish did not receive developer fees for the year ended December 31, 2024. 

25. Industrial Development Board 

A. In 2002, the Parish purchased the Wal-Mart Warehouse and Distribution Center land and a portion of the 
improvements thereon for $3,995,000. These funds were received by the Parish from the Louisiana 
Division of Administration Facility Planning and Control. The Parish then conveyed title to the land and 
improvements to the Industrial Development Board of the Parish of Tangipahoa, Inc. (the "Board"). The 
Board is a non-protit corporation fornied under the provisions of LRS 51:1151 

The Board issued $40.000,000 of taxable revenue bonds. These honds were purchased by Wal-Mart Stores, 
Inc. The outstanding bonds payable of $40,000,000 of the Wal-Mart facility is not reflected in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

The Board leased the land and improvements to Wal-Mart Stores East, Inc. for lease payments sufficient to 
pay the principal and interest on the bonds The lease agreement also provides for the payinent of $550,000 
to the Board in the initial year of the lease and a payment of $275,000 in February of each year thereafter. 
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The lease term is from October 1, 2002, through August 1, 2040. At the end of the lease term. or earher 
Wal-Mart Stores East. Inc. elects, the interest of the Board in the leased facility will be sold to Wal-Mart 
Stores East, Inc. 

B. The Board also issued $4,000,000 of taxable revenue bonds to finance the expansion of Elmer Candy 
Corporation. The Board acquired the expansion and then entered into a lease ageement with Elmer Candy 
Corporation fix lease payments sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the bonds. Under the lease, 
$1,667 is payable monthly to the Parish. The lease term is from December 11, 2014. through 
December 1, 2042. Elmer Candy Corporation has the option to purchase the leased facilities upon payment 
in filll of the bonds. On March 13, 2015, the bonds were paid in full. 

C. On December 21, 2017, the Board acquired land and improvements from hntralox, LLC with the purchase 
price heing a payment in lieu of taxes ("PILOT") program for the purpose of locating and expanding 
Intralox's manufacturing facilities in Tangipahoa Parish. On that same day, the Board entered into a lease 
agreement and agreement to issue up to $10,000.000 of taxable revenue honds. The term of the lease is 
from December 21, 2017, through December 31, 2042. The premises revert to Intralox, LLC after all sums 
due to the Board hat e been paid under the lease. 

Under the PILOT program, Intralox, LLC is to pay an annual administrative fee of $10,000 heginning in 
December 2018. There will also be an annual PILOT payment beginning in December 2018 calculated 
using the agreed upon formula. 

As of December 31. 2024, the Board had not issued any bonds for this project. 

D. On December 27, 2023, the Board entered into a lease agreement, a PILOT, and an agreement to issue 
bonds not to exceed $167,000,000. The term of the lease is from December 27, 2023, and will expire on 
the fifteen (15) year anniversary of the Completion Date. The premises revert to Amite Solar, LLC after 
all sunts due to the Board have been paid under the lease 

Under the PILOT program, Amite Solar, LLC is to pay an annual administrative fee of $25.000 to the 
Board. Amite Solar. LLC will pay an annual ad valorem PILOT payment, based on a formula stated in the 
agreement, beginning on the project's completion date and ending on the tirst day of year 15 of the term. 
The Amite Solar. LLC sales tax PILOT payments shall he paid within twenty (20) calendar days following 
the end of each calendar quarter from the effective date through the term. 

A Community Investment Contrihution of $250,000 will be paid to the Economic Development Foundation 
to be used by the Foundation in furtherance of its mission in the Parish. 

As of December 31, 2024, the Board had not issued any bonds fbr this project. 

26. Commitments and Contingencies 

The Parish had various outstanding contractual commitments at December 31, 2024, of approximately 
$8,446,000 for the construction and renovation of various roads, buildings, and landfill expansions. The 
majority of these commitments are for the Loranger lihrary construction and the Tangipahoa Parish Jail roof 
replacement. For all projects. approximately $13.243,121 has been spent as of December 31, 2024. Future 
appropriations will fund these commitments as work is performed. 
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The Parish also has numerous outstanding professional service contracts at December 31, 2024 of 
approximately $9,666.852. The lareest of these professional service contracts totaled $1,165.686 for the 
Chappepeela Road bridge replacement. Future appropriations will fund these commitments as work is 
performed. 

27. Litigation and Claims 

At December 31, 2024, the Parish is involved in litigation or is aware of various claims totaling an undetermined 
amount. Legal counsel for the Parish has determined that the losses (if any) cannot he reasonably estimated at 
this time: accordingly, no liahility has been recorded in these tinancial statements. 

28. Risk Managenient 

The Parish is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets: 
errors and omissions: injuries to employees: and natural disasters. The Parish attempts to minimize risk from 
significant losses through the purchase of commercial insurance. The Parish's general liabihty policy does not 
cover the Section 8 program, nor does it cover road hazards. 

29. Compensation Paid to Parish President and Parish Council / Board Members 

The schedule of compensation paid is presented in compliance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of 
the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation paid to the Parish President and Council members 
for the year ended December 31. 2024. is as follows. 

Rohhy Miller, Parish President $ 171,536 
Darrell Sinagra - District 1 25,3 '7 
John - District 2 25,800 
L.ouis "Nick" Joseph - District 3 25,800 
Joseph "Joe Havis - District 4 '5,317 
H. G. "Buddy" Ridgel - District 5 25,800 
Enule "Joey" Mayeaux - District 6 25,800 
Lionell Wells - District 7 ?5,£;0t1 
David Vial - District 8 25,800 
Brigette Delatte Hyde - District 9 25,800 
Strader Cieutat - District 10 25,327 
Trenton "Trent" Forrest - District 1 (Prior) 447 
Carlo Bruno - District 4 (Prior) 416 
Kimberly Landry Coates - Distnct 10 (Prior) 447 

 

$ 429,427 
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30. Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through June 20. 2025, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued 

On February 24. 2025. the Council approved the bid by Barnere Construction totaling SOi55,380 for the 2025 
Road Maintenance Overlay Prouam. 

No other events were noted that require recording or disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2024. 
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Schedule 1  

Revenues: 
Taxec: 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget 

Actual 
Amounts - 
Budgetary 

Basis 

Variance wtth 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

    

Sales S 8.080,0011 S 8.080.000 S 8.411.477 S 331.477 
Ad Valorem 1.590,000 1.700.000 1,854,069 154.069 
Franchise 710,111111 650.111111 643.997 (6.003) 

Licenses, Permits. and Rent 2.487,675 2.613.175 2.737.424 124.249 
Intergovernmental Revenues: 

    

Federal Funds: 

    

Federal Grants 10.500,0011 12.818.488 16.578.771 3,760.283 
GOMESA Revenue Sharing 1.250,000 1.2711000 1,27(1,079 79 
Opioid Settlement Funds 500,000 1.324.687 1,324.687 

 

State Funds: 

    

State Revenue Sharing 92,000 70.000 96.123 26.123 
Severance Tax 173,000 173.000 207.481 34.481 
State Appropriations 180,000 175.760 175.760 

 

State Grants 150,000 778.314 769,835 (8.479) 
:Po Fire Insurance Rebate 857,000 888.000 888.024 24 
Alcoholic Beverage Tax ',IMO / MIMI 4.486 2.486 

Fees, Charges. and 
Commicsions for Service 188,477 136.000 136.338 338 

Fines and Forfeitures - 1.500 2.885 1.385 
Investrnent Earnings 1.211).000 1.61111000 1,658,181 58.181 
Other Revenues 4.142,325 5.246.109 5,263.452 17.343 

Total Revenues 32.122,477 37.527.1133 42,023.069 4.496.036 

Expenditures: 

    

General Government: 

    

Legislative 789,012 800.425 735,694 64.731 
Judicial 6.480,084 6.945.373 6,908.104 37.269 
Elections 1 36,304 '85.700 272.581 12.619 
Finance and Administrative 6.906,854 3.869.254 4,014.124 (144.870) 

Puhlic Safet 4.132,227 5.0/0.050 4.984.803 35.247 
Public Works 4.377,445 5.973.057 4.970.771) 1,002.287 
Health and Welfare 950,000 945.000 1,063,498 (118.498) 
Economic Development 445,772 445.772 372.403 73.369 
Culture and Recreation 830,016 1.047.6511 1.052.402 (4.752) 
Debt Service 

    

Principal 

 

3'5.000 983.363 (658.363) 
Interest 4W231 ;;0moo 359.797 (29.797) 

Total Expenditures 25.555,945 25.9S;6.7S1 -71-7i1k) 269.242 

Excess / (Deficiencies) of Revenues 
Over Expemlitures 6.566,532 11.540.252 16,305,530 4,765.278 

tConlainecl) 

7(i 
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

Schedule 1  
(Continued) 

 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget 

Actual 
Anal aints - 
Budgetary 

Basis 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 
Other Financing Sources / ((`ses): 

    

Capital Lease Financing ~Q,III111 36.689 55.076 18.387 
Contribution In 

 

230.0oo 218.797 (11.203) 
Sale of Capital Assets .2(1,000 211.000 19,093 (907) 
Operating Transfers In (Out) (6.205.0001 (10.577:191) (9.9(12.'10) 675.081 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (6.125.i H H)) (10.290.602) (9,609.244) 681.358 

Net Change in Fund Balances 441.532 1.249.650 6,696.286 5,446.636 

Fund Balance - Begioning of the Year 14.690.(,sq, 14.690.6s6 14.690.684 (2) 

Fund Balance - End of the Year s 15.132.21 s 15.940.33o S 21.3s6.970 S 5.446.634 

See independent auditor's report 
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Schedule 2 

 

Original 
Budget 

Fmal 
Budget 

Actual 
Amounts - 
Budgetary 

Basis 

Variance with 
Final Budget 
Favorahle 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 

    

Sales Taxes S 24.510,000 S 24.510.000 S 25.234A32 S 724.432 
Inter€rovernmental Revenues: 

    

Federal Fund, 
Federal Grants 1.687,500 770.000 1.031.164 1 61.164 

State Funds: 

    

Parish Transportation Funds 970,000 825.000 969.030 144.030 
State Grants 1.00(t,000 450.000 335.704 (114.296) 

Interest 814,0110 884.00 987.799 103.799 
Other Revenues -10,1Hal 185AHH) 214.33g , 6.118 

Total Revenues 2o.021.500 27.624.000 28,772,467 1.145.467 

Expenditures: 

    

Puhlic Works 27.()48,700 22.883.460 18,873.654 4,009.806 
Debt Service - Principal 

  

894.328 (894.328) 
Debt Service - Interest - - 138.651 (138,653) 

Total Expenditures 27.1)48.700 22.553.460 19.906,635 1,976.8'5 

Excess / (Deficiencies) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 1.972,800 4.744).540 8,865.832 4,125.292 

Other Hnancing Sources / (Uses): 

    

Capital Lease Financing 400,000 400.000 396.055 (3.945) 
Sale of Capital Assets 2(1,000 55.000 63,005 8.005 
Operating Transfers (Out) (1.000.itim)) (640,Iutti) (142.017) 497.983 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ( 550,i H )0) (1s5..0m) 317.043 502.043 

Net Change in Fund Balance 1.?kt'.linu 4 540 9,18'.875 4.627.335 

Fund Balance - Beginning of the Year 17.664.008 17.664.0C:( 17,664.009 1 

Fund Balance - End of the Year S 19 056,808 S ' 1.219.548 S 26.846.884 S 4,627.33o 

See independent auditor's report 
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Schedule 3 

Rewnues: 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget 

Actual 
Ann amts - 
Budgetary 

Basis 

Variance wtth 
Final Budget 
Favorahle 

(Unfavorable) 

     

Ad Valorem Taxes $ 3.550,200 S 3.841.1(10 S 4,137.266 S 196 166 
Inter€overnmental Revenues: 

     

Federal Fund, 
Federal Grants 

 

48.000 66.038 

 

18.038 
State Funds: 

     

State Revenue Sharing 265,000 265.000 275.085 

 

10.085 
Fees, Charges. and Commissions for Semces 5.405,000 5.405.000 5,554.209 

 

149.209 
Interest 1 00,0t 130.00 114.845 

 

(15.155) 
Other Revenues 47,0o0 70.I)IH) 83.169 

 

13.269 

Total Revenues 407 100 9.759.100 10.230.712 

 

471.612 

Expenditures: 

     

Puhlic Works 11.825.646 13.9(8).139 11,019.428 

 

2,880.811 
Debt Service - Principal 125,00u 125.00 1.374.457 

 

(1,249.457) 
Debt Service - Interest 129,575 129.575 297.445 

 

(167.870) 

Total Expenditures 12.080,221 14.154.814 12,691,330 

 

1,463.484 

Excess / (Deficiencies) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures (2.613,021) (4.395.714) (2,460.618) 

 

1.935.096 

Other Hnancing Sources / (Uses): 

     

Capital Lease Financing 

 

1.074.593 1.670.659 

 

(4(13.934) 
Sale of Capita) Assets 

 

8.700 8,766 

 

66 

Operating Transfers (C)ut) (400,IHH)) (400.000) (116.867) 

 

283.133 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (400.0) )0) 1 (;;. -)93 1,562.558 

 

(120.735) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (3.013.021) (1712.42O (898.060) 

 

1.814 301 

Fund Balance - Beginning of the Year 5.217.o65 5.217.665 5.217.004 

 

(1 ) 

Fund Balance - End of the Year 2.204.044 s 2.505.244 4.319.004 S 1.814.300 

See independent auditor's report 
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Schedule 4 

 

Original 
Budget 

Flnal 
Budg..et 

Actual 
Amounts - 
Budgetary 

Basis 

Variance wtth 
Final Budget 
Favorahle 

(Unfavorabk) 

Revenues: 

    

Licenses, Permits. and Rent S 895,000 S 895.000 S 1,289.169 S 394.169 
Interest 10,0ott 10.000 '5.57' 15.572 
Other Revenues 

 

'.169.711 1 .933.391 763,679 

Total Revenues 0o5.000 3.074.712 4.248.132 LI 71.420 

Expenditures: 

    

Puhlic Works 889,409 1.8n.4o9 2,673.022 (783.613) 

Total Expenditures 889.409 1.W.409 ".673.011 (783.613) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 15,591 1.185.303 1.575.110 389.807 

Fund Balance - Beginning uf the Year 141 ,203 141.103 142.203 

 

Fund Balance - End of the Year ‘, 157.794 S 1.327.506 S 1.717,313 S 389.807 

See independent auditor's report 
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7074 ?023 7027 2021 1010 2019 2018 

Total OPEB 

       

Service Cost S 229,784 $ 193.937 S 260,421 $ /11.798 S 155.468 $ 224,161 S 99.578 
Interest on Total OPEB Liabihty 204,940 213.'79 103,836 102,006 150.490 144,546 119.165 
Effect of Plan Changes 

    

541.475 

  

Effect of Economic Dernouraphic 
(Gains) or Losses 2,309,504 36.830 1,745,605 

 

(2.014.770) 

  

Effect of Assumption Chanees or Inputs (228.319) 288.047 (1.144,667) 48.487 578.029 1.787,183 (177.890) 
Benetit Payments (212.841) (212.(i55) (202.947) (161.112) (134.262) (106.34x) (101.871) 

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 2,302,568 519.388 762,248 "?01.179 (723.570) 2.049,542 (61.068) 
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 6.162.773 5,643.385 4,881,137 4.679.958 5.4113,528 3.353,986 3.415.054 

Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a) S 8.465.341 $ 6.162.773 S 5.643385 $ 4.881.137 S 4.67'1.958 $ 5.403.5'8 S 3.353.986 

Fiduciary Net Position: 

       

Employer Contributions S 725,288 $ 736.859 S 683,105 $ 626,243 S 542.160 $ 523,565 S 467.961 
Net Investment Income 114,412 57.484 (101,378) (25.046) 41.336 21,970 5.060 
Benefit Payments (212.841) (212.655) (21)2.947) (161.112) (134.262) (106.348) (101.871) 
Adnunistrative Expenses (22.181) (26.906) (14.756) (27.756) (19.413) (22,500) (12.000) 

Net Chanee in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 604.678 554.782 364.024 41).319 429.821 416.687 350.150 
Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning '.536.79; 1 982.011 1.617 08-

 

1 205.658 775 837 359.150 

 

Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) S ≥.141.-171 $ 1.536.793 S 1.98'.011 $ 1.617.987 S 1.205.(i58 S S 359.150 

Net C)PEB - Ending = (a) - (b) 5,3-)3.8-10 $ 3.61  s.980 S 3.661 374 S 3 163.150 S 3,474.300 S 4.027,691 S 2.994,836 

Fiduciary Net Position as a °0 of 
Total OPEB Ltabtlttr 37.11% 41 16% 35.! 79•0 33 15410 1 5.76°4 14 36° 10.71°u 

Ci)vered Payr(111 S 15,939,876 $ 15.851.733 S 15,205,499 $ 11.470.198 S 11,002.588 $ 11.687,646 S 11,1(I4.652 
Net OPEB Liability as a % of Covered Payroll 33.41f% 22 87°.0 24.08°6 28 45°i. 31.58°0 39 59% 26.97% 

The schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to shuw information for 10 years. Him ever, until a full 10-year trend is compiled. governments s hould present 

information 1iir those years for whtch intbrmation is available. Also. recaleulatums of prior years are not required, and if prim years are not reported in acci)rdance 

with the current GASB standards. thev should not he reported. 

See independent auditor's ieport. 
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Schedule of the ParislVs Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 
For the Year Ended December 31. 202.4 

Sched u le 6 

Pansh's 
Proportion of the 

Net Pension 

Parish's 
Proportionate 

Share of the Net 
Pensit in ; 

(Asset) 

Parish's 
Covered 

Employee 
Payroll 

Parish's 
Proportionate 
Sharc of the 

Net Pension 
Liability as a 

° n of its Covered 

Employee Payroll  

Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position as a 

no  ot , the Total 
Pensum  

Fiscal 
Year 

For the Ycar Ended December 31: 
Parochial  Employees Retirement System itf  Louisiana: 

"023 1 .446138°0 2.330,490 S 17,826,464 13.07% 98 03°0 

2022 2.415639'1.6 S 9..297,289 S 17.7311,010 52.44% 93 55°n 

2021 1 .346993% 5 (11.055,356) S 16,385.348 -67.47% 11045% 

2020 1.226941" o (3.904,749) 15,746.754 -24.8()°o 104 00°0 

2019 2.2071142°0 103.896 14,875.633 ti.70% 99 88(!b 

2018 2.133150% 9.467,686 13,99).413 67.66"o 88 86% 

2017 1.960567°0 (1.455,224) S 13.113.737 -11.111% 101 98°0 

2016 1.801971M S 3.711,181 ti 12.ti67,623 311.75°0 94 15°0 

2015 1.702461°i, ti 4.481,367 10.686.664 41.93% 92 13% 

2014 1.68000V oS 460.677 9.761.217 4.72°o 99 14% 

For the Year Ended Atte 30. 

   

Registrar , id- Voter, Employees' Retiremen1 System: 

   

2024 0.7257111°.0 S 79,833 S 1118A68 73.60°0 02 59°H 

2023 0.612886% S 116,477 S 101.425 114.8410 86 73°0 

2022 0.611503% S 149.942 S 86.839 172.67°0 82 46% 

2021 0.6791124°0 S 21.540 S 1111.724 21.1710 97 68% 

2020 0.8051154% S 173,431 S 1119.094 158.97n 83 31% 

2019 0.818013% S 152,970 S 112,354 136.15°o 72 10% 

2018 0.76756i isi.'0 S 181,177 S 107,049 169. '5°n 80 57°0 

2017 0.788636% S 173,114 S 1118.007 1611.28% 80 51% 

2016 0.820247% S 232,746 S 102.673 226.69°0 73 98% 

2015 0.8803112"o S 215.589 S (12.673 191.341n 76 86% 

District Attorney's Retirement System: 

   

2024 0.526393"i, S 252,989 S 368,349 68.68°n 9' 33% 
2023 0.540065% S 463.133 S 3611.546 128.45% 85 85% 
2022 0.495649% S 533.919 S 320,731 166.47°o 81 65% 
2021 0.484681% S 86.28g S 3113.806 28.40°n 96 79°b 

2020 0.486942% S 385,791 S 3112.066 127.72% 84 86°0 

2019 0.525194% S 168,957 S 308,773 54.72°o 93 B% 

2018 0.463757% S 149,233 S 19i i,397 51.39°n 9-/on 

2017 0.4881133% S 131,633 S 296.579 44.38°o 93 57% 

2016 11.4-33344"o S 84,859 S 168.273 31.63°o 95 09% 

2015 0.397774% S 21.426 S '33.899 9.161n 98 56% 

Fhis schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 ..ears. 

See independent ailditor's report 
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Schedule of the Parish's Contributions 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Schedule 7 

Contributions in 
Relation to the Contributions as a 

Contractually Contractually Contributit HI Percentage of 
Fiscal Required Required Deficienc), • Parish's Covered Covered 
Year Contribution Contribution (Excess) Employee Payroll Employee Payroll  

For the Year Ended December 31. 
Parochial Employees Retirement System  of  Louisiana: 

2023 $ 2.050.1141 S 2.050.041 S - $ 17,826.464 11 50% 
1011 $ 1.038.950 S 2.038.950 S - $ 17.730.010 11 50°0 

1011 $ 1.884,316 S 1.884,316 S $ 16.385.348 11 50°0 
2020 $ 1.928.978 S 1.928,978 S $ 15.746.754 1' /5°o 
2019 $ 1.822.266 S 1.822,266 S $ 14.875.633 12 25°o 
2018 $ 1.609.128 S 1.609,128 S - $ 13.992.413 11 50°L. 
2017 $ 1.508.081 S 1.508.082 S - $ 13,113.737 11 50% 
1016 $ 1.508.453 S 1.508,453 S - $ 12.067.623 12 50°0 
2015 $ 1.389,268 S 1.389,268 S - $ 10.686.664 13 0000 
2014 $ 1,415.379 S 1.415.379 S - $ 9.761.217 14 50°0 

For the Year EnLkd jaw 30. 

   

Registrar of Voters Employees' Retirenient System: 

   

2024 19.524 S 19,524 S $ 108.468 18 006 i. 
7073 S 18,256 S 18,256 S $ 101.425 18 000 0 
2022 $ 17.5711 S 17,520 S $ 86.839 20 18°0 
202 .1 $ 16.266 S 16,266 S $ 89.696 18 13°o 
2020 $ 18.946 S 18,946 S 105.258 18 00°. 
2019 $ 19.513 S 19.513 S 111.477 17 50% 
2018 $ 18.729 S 18,729 S $ 110.167 17 00°0 

2017 $ 19,876 S [9,876 $ 107.467 18 4900 
2016 $ 22.417 S 22,417 S $ 105.680 21 21°o 
2015 $ /7.996 S 27 .996 S $ 119.882 /3 35°o 

District Attorney's Retirement System: 

   

2024 $ 44.202 S 44,202 S - $ 368.349 12 006 i. 
/0/3 $ 39,510 S 39,510 S $ 364/.546 10 96°0 
2022 S 32.649 S 32,649 S - $ 320.731 10 18°n 

2021 $ 21.127 S 21,127 S - $ 312.998 6 75% 
2020 $ 11.783 S 11,783 S $ '94.581 4 00°,.. 
2019 $ 8.129 S 8.129 S - $ 309.815 2 62% 
2018 $ 1.922 S 1,922 S - $ )98.676 0 646 i. 
2017 $ S S - $ 2911.031 0 00° 
2016 $ 5.005 s 5,005 S - $ '93.015 1 71°n 
2015 $ 13.122 S 13,122 S - $ 250.082 5 75% 

This scheduk is presented to illustrate the requirement to show intormation for 10 years. 

See independent auditor's report 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government Schedule 8 
Amite, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Federal Giantor i Pass-Through Grantor " 
Proiroun Title 

Assistance 
Listtng 

Nuinber 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 
Federal 

Eventfinites 

Amounts 
Providell to 

Sub-Recipienr ,, 

U.S. Department of Housinz & Urban Development: 

    

Direct Prop am: 

    

Section 8 Housnig Chtoce Vouchers 14.81 1 

 

4.772.823 1$ 

Passed through LA Division of Aihninistration. 

    

Office of Commimity Planning & Development: 

    

LA Commimity Development Block Cilant 14.2214 B-18-DP-22-00I-061 129.128 

 

LA Community Development Block Grant 14 228 B-18-DP-22-001-065 58 815 

 

Resilient Conununines Infrastrucnue Program - 
Administration 14.225 53LDRC6 lit 1 35.579 

 

Resilient Communities Infrastructure Program - 
TAN West Mulberry Extension 14.228 53LDRC7701 1 13S 

 

Resilient Communities Infiastnicture Piograin - 
TAN Citizens Di op Off at Landfill 14 22N 53LDRC770' 184 

 

Emergency Solutions Grant - Slieltei Grant 14.231 2022-2024 2023-2025 104.188 

 

Total U.S Deparmient of Housing & Urban 

    

Development 

    

U.S. Department of Homeland Security: 

    

Passed through li S. Department of Housuig & 

    

Urban Developmeiit 
Disaster Housing Assistame Protgani '.17.109 13 9 .571 

  

Passed through LA Governor's Office of Homeland 

    

Security & Emergency Preparedness 

    

Fluid Mitigation Assistance !I-J.0'9 FMA-PJ-06-LA-2018-nill 321 

 

Flood Min....anon Assistance 97.029 FMA-PJ-06-LA-2020-001 26 12 

 

Fhtod Mttigation .Assistance 

 

FKLA-PJ-06-LA-2t12 l -001 6781.91258 

 

August 2016 Floods 9 t97 : (0i 32 (8 r7 

 

62.852 

 

Hull icatie Ida 97.036 

 

796.457 

 

Hurricaiie Flancine 97 036 

 

245 169 

 

Hazar.I Mitigation Grant Program. 

    

Beavei Creek 97.039 

 

4263-105- 0033 I:. 

 

4277 o on rth Retention Pd N 
August 2016 Flood Eloa tit ins 

97 039 
97.039 

4277-105-00 l 5 
4277-105-0028 

28
1. 

(.
3:

)
 

 

Geneia tor 97.ii39 4277-105-0085 1 41 91 ..1317143 

 

Emergetity Management Prepatedness Gtant 

 

2022 111 370 

 

Einertzency Management Preparethiess Grant 
i
!..:

7
77

.

..
i
00

,4
33

7
99 2023 1-1.472 

 

Building Resilient Infiastructure and Communities 

 

2021 145.045 

 

State Homeland Sean ity Program 97.067 2022 11 165 

 

State Homeland Security Pior.tram '.17.067 2023 20.138 

 

Swift Ciu rent Plograni 97.144 2022 485.455 

 

Total U S. Department 01 Homeland Security 

  

S; 630 3,)3 

 

C.S. Department of Health & Human Services: 

    

Direct from Cetiteis fol Disease Control 93.276 INH2KE003398-01-00 101 67') 

 

Passed through LA DeparMient &Health & 

    

Hospitals: 

    

Centers for Disease Control & Prevention 93.283 2022 14 993 

 

Centers for Disease Contiol & Prevention 93 "83 2023 4.896 

 

Total U.S. Depai mien! of Health & Human Servi‘es 

  

121.568 

 

(Conlinued) 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government Schedule 8 

Amite, Louisiana (Continued) 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Federal Giantor Pass-Through Grantor 
Prograin Title 

Assistance 
Listing 

Number 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 

Amounts 
Federal Providell to 

Expentlitmes Sub-Recipienis 

U.S. Department of Transportation: 

   

Direct Prop ant: 
COX1D-19 - Federal Ti aosit - Formula Grants 20.507 LA-2020-023-00 69.467 

Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 LA-90-X483-t (,33 650 

Passed through LA Department of Pubiic Safety & 

   

CorreLtions. 

   

Alcohol Impaired Driving Cownerineasuies 

   

Incentive Grant 20.O1 2021-10-lit 10 790 

Alcohol Inipaued Driving Countermeasures 
Ilicelitive Grant 20 601 2021-55-14 5713 

Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures 
Incentive Gram 20.601 2024-10-16 7.322 

Passed thiough LA Department of Transpoitation & 

   

Development 

   

Highway Planning & Construction 20.205 H 014048 6 .irt.5ti9 

Formula Grants for Rui al Areas 20.509 LA-90-X430-I ai 15 W) 

Total U.S. Deparunent of Transportauon 

  

939 391 

Restore Act 

   

Direct Prograth 
ROCk -rely Projed '1 015 RDCGR440123 1.713.1494 

Passed through State MLA through the Coastal 

   

Protection and Restoration Authority Board 

   

Landinidge (Rock Breakwater) 
Shoreline Protection Pi ogram 87.052 PO-0183 4.126.823 

Total Restore Att 

  

5 840 717 

U.S. Department of Labot : 

   

Passed through LA Workforce4:-munission 

   

WIOA Cluster: 

   

WIA Adult Program 1 7  258 

 

1.211.746 

WIA Youth Progiam 17.259 

 

672 455 

WIA Dislmated Worker Pi ogiam 17.278 

 

1.035.322 

Tt tol W1OA Cluster 

  

'.919.5'3 

Adnun 

  

363 927 

Tool U S Dept mom of Labor 

  

1.283.45o 

Depai talent of Aericulture 

   

Direct Progoun: 

   

NRCS - Emergemy Watershed Protection Pi ogram 10.923 

 

3.6 I I., 

Urban Apiculture and Innovauve Producut.n 

Grants Pioaam 10.923 

 

h4.541 

Total U.S Department uf Agrlculture 

  

5 - 

Department of Lnergy 

   

Direct Program: 

   

Energy Efficiency and Conversation Block Carlui 81.128 ED-FOA-0002882 , 0 -1-4 6 

T‘ital U S Dept hiient Eneagy 

   

(Continued) 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government Schedule 8 

Amite, Louisiana (Continued) 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Federal Glankg I Pass-Timm* Grantoi 
ProL;r:tin Title 

Assistance Pass-Through 
Listing Entity Identifying 

Nuinber Nuinber 
Federal 

Expenalinues 

Amounts 
Provided to 

Sub-Recipieni ,, 

U.S. Department of the Intel tor: 

   

Dat-(t Prop am: 
GoMESA 15.435 6.154.411 

 

Total U S. Department of Intetior 

 

6 154 411 

 

U.S. Department of Treasurv: 

   

Direct Program: 

   

COVID-19 - State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21 027 15.439.757 510 621 

Total U.S. Department of Tacastuy 

 

15.439.757 546.621 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

 

40 650 145 $ 546 ().7 I 

Note 1 - This s‘hedule of espendinues of federal awards includes the fedei al giant activity of Tangipalese Parish Government and is presented ott the 
modified accrual basis of att.ntilitIng. The information in this whedule es presented in accordame with the acquirements of Title 2 12 S. Code ot Federal 

Regulations Part 24 H t Administrative Requirements, Coil Prineiple.s. and .4udit RequirententsPr Federal Auurda (Uniform Guidance) therefore. 
SUMP allIOIMIS presented in (his schedule may differ 111.01 amounts 'Resented ut. or used ID the preparation of the basic financial statements 

Note 2 - Tangipahoa P3J ish Govermnent has eleLted to use the 10 peftent de minimis indirect Lost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

See independent auditor's report 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Financial Data Schedule — Balance Sheet 
December 31. 2024 

Disaster 
Housing Housing 
Choice Assistance 

Disaster 
Housing 

Assistance 

Schedule 9 

 

Line 

 

Voucher Program Program 

 

Itern Account Description 14.871 97 109 DH IKE Total 

 

Assets: 

     

Current Assets 

    

111 Cash - Unrestricted S 72.248 $ 436,800 S 980.422 S 1,489.470 
113 Cash - Other Restricted 34.498 

  

34.498 
115 Cash - Restricted tor Payment of 

     

Current Liabilities 25.327 

  

25.327 

100 Total Cash 132.073 436,800 9s0.4" 1.549.295 
l 2 l Accounts Receivable - 

     

PHA Projects 45.727 

  

45.727 
125 Accounts Receivable - 

     

Miscellaneous 

    

120 Total Receivables 45.727 - - 45.727 

150 Total Current Assets 177. s00 436,800 980.4" 1,595.022 

190 Total Assets ti 177.800 $ 436.800 S 980.472 ti 1.505.022 

 

Liabilities. Deferred Inflows of 

     

Resources. and Equity 

     

Liabilities. 

     

Current Liahilities: 

    

312 Accounts Payable 90 Days S 25.327 S s 46.230 S 71.557 
313 Accounts Payable • 90 Days 9.086 - - 9.086 
3/1 Accrued Waae ' Payroll 

     

Taxes Payable 26.146 - 

 

26.146 
331 Accounts Payable - HUD 

     

PHA Programs 8.830 

  

8.830 

310 Total Current Liabilities 59.389 

 

46.230 115.619 

30(1 Total Liabilities 69.389 

 

46.230 115.619 

 

Equity: 

    

509 3 Restricted Fund Balance 34.498 436,800 934.192 1,405.490 
512 3 Unassigned Fund Balance 719 3 

  

73.913 

513 Total Equity Net Position 10.411 43(..S00 93.4.192 1.479.403 

600 Total Liahilities and Equity.' 

     

Net Position 177.800 436.800 S 980.47'2 S 1.595.0" 

See independent auditor's report 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government Schedule 11) 

Amite, Louisiana 
Financial Data Schedule — Revenues and Expenses 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Line 
Hem g Account Descnption 

Housing 
Choice 

Vonchei 
14.871 

 

Disastei 
Housin2 

Assistance 
Nog ain 
97.109 

Disaster 
Housing 

Assistance 
Pi otrani 
DH.EKE Total 

 

Revenues: 

     

70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants $ 4,689.035 $ - $ - $ 4.689.035 
71100 Investment hicome - Uurestrtcted 1.476 

 

23.298 

 

74.919 
71500 Other Reveuues sl. S83 

   

S1.583 
716(10 Gain oi Loss on Sale of Capital Assets 15.471 

    

70000 Total Revenues 4.787.865 

 

23,298 50,145 .4S61.30S 

 

Operating Expenses: 

     

91100 Administrative Salaries 265.306 

   

265.306 
91200 Auditing Fees 7.500 

   

7.500 
9131(1 Bookkeeping Fee 6,599 

   

6,599 
91500 Employee Benefit Contnhutions - 

      

Administrative 114,126 

   

114..126 
91600 Office Expenses 34.358 

  

76.416 110.774 
91800 Travel 13.963 

   

13.963 
942th1 Ordinary Maintenance & 

      

Opel ations - Materials & Othei 19,645 

   

19,645 
96110 Propel tv Insurance S75 

   

S75 
96130 Woikmen's Compensation 536 

   

536 
96140 All Othei Insuiance 3.211 

   

3.211 
96200 Other Geueral Expenses 21.696 

  

161 /1 S57 

96900 Total Operating Expenses 487.76s 

  

76.577 56-1.3_15 

97000 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

      

Oser (Under) Operating Expenses 4,300.097 

 

23,298 (26,432) 4,196.963 

97300 Housiug Assistance Payments 4.216.511 

   

4.216.S11 
97350 HAP Portability In 70.'73 

   

70.273 
97600 Capital Outlays - Governmental Funds 

   

62,995 62.905 

90000 Total Expenses 4,774.1O2 

  

139,572 1,014 124 

 

Other Financing Sources: 

     

10030 Operating Transfers from Primary 

      

Government 

     

10100 Total Other Financing Sources 

     

10000 Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenues 

      

()ver (Under) Total Expenses 13.013 

 

23,298 t 59,427) (53,116) 

11030 Beganning Equity 95.398 

 

413,507 1.023,619 1,531.519 

 

Total Equity 108.411 $ 436,800 $ 934.192 $ 1.479.403 

11170 Administrative Fee Equity 73.913 

    

11180 Hou.sing Assistance Payments Etwity 34,495 

     

Total Equity 108.411 

    

11190 Unit Months Available 8,400 

    

11210 Number of Unit Mouths Leased 6.242 

    

See independent auditor's report 

81) 



Tangipahoa Parish Government Schedule 11  
Amite, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Agency Head: Honorable Charles "Robby" \ Idler, Parish President 

Purpose Amount 

Salary 171,536 
Benefits - Insurance 12.969 
Benefits - Retirement 19.727 
Benefits - Medicare 2.567 
Benefits - Other 
Telephone 2,385 
Car Allowance 
Vehicle Provided by Government {Taxed on Forrn W-2) 11.141 
Per Diem 
Reimbursements 
Travel (Hotels, Parking Fees, Lodging, and Meals) 
Registration Fees 1,135 
Conference Travel (Hotels, Parkiny, Lodyiny. and Meals) 6,559 

Housing 
Linvouchered Expenses 
Special Meals 
Other 

'')S,019 

see independent auditor's report 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Justice System Funding Schedule — Receiving Entity 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

First Six-
Month Period 

Ended 

Schedule 12 

Second Six-

 

Month Penod 
Ended 

Receipts From: 

 

06'30 24 

 

1131/24 

   

21st JDC Criminal Court Fund, Criminal Court Costs Fees 108.858 S 107,820 

  

108.58 S 107.820 

Ending Balance of Amounts Assessed but Not Received 

    

See independent auditor's report 
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Honorable Robby Miller, Parish President and 
Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Council 

Tangipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Tangipahoa Parish Government (the "Parish") as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Parish's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 20, 2025. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Parish's internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Parish's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Parish's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements 
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Parish's financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government 

providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other matters that is 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as item 2024-001. 

Tangipahoa Parish Government's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Parish's response to the 
findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The 
Parish's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Lt..* L.,or  

James Lambert Riggs and Associates, Inc. 
Hammond, Louisiana 

June 20, 2025 
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on 
Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance  

Honorable Robby Miller, Parish President and 
Members of the Tangipahoa Parish Council 

Tangipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Tangipahoa Parish Government's (the "Parish") compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each 
of the Parish's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2024. The Parish's major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of fmdings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Parish complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the Parish and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not 
provide a legal determination of the Parish's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, 
and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Parish's federal programs 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Parish's 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government 

comphance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high le‘ el of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a euarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. 
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from traud is higher than for that resulting from error. as 
fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about the Parish's compliance with the requirernents of each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Goveinment Auditing Standarils, and 
the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout thr audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, ancl design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 
Parish's compliance with the compliance requirernents referred to above and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain and understanding of the Parish's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. hut not for thr purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Parish's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and any signiticant deticiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance 
that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal contivl over complia»ce exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees. in the normal course of perfimming their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, ui internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonahle possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal progam that is less severe than a material weahiess in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities tbr the Audit of C'ompliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to he material weaknesses, as defined above. Howe‘er, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 
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Tangipahoa Parish Government 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

cxe'r Ct...-6-1 1r  

James Lambert Riggs and Associates, Inc. 
Hammond, Louisiana 

June 20, 2025 
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Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

We have audited the basic financial statements of Tangipahoa Parish Government as of and for the year ended 
December 31. 2024 and have issued our report thereon dated June 20, 2025. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the provisions of the Unitbrm 
Guidance. 

Section I — Summary of Auditor's Reports 

1 Report on Internal Control and Coinpliance Material to the Financial Statements 

Type of Opinion Issued X Unmodified Modified 
Disclaimer Adverse 

Internal Control: 
Material Weakness Yes X No 
Significant Deficiencies Yes X No 

Compliance: 
Compliance Material to the Financial Statements X Yes   No 

Was a management letter issued? Yes X No 

Federal Awards 

Type of Opinion on Compliance for Major Programs X Unmodified   Modified 
Disclaimer Adverse 

Internal Control: 
Material Weakness Yes X No 
Significant Deficiencies Yes X No 

Are there findings required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance? 
Yes X No 

Identification of Major Programs 

{.'FI)A Number Name of Federal Program (or Cluster )  
15.435 GoMESA 
2 1.0 1 5 Resources and Ecosystems Sustainability, Tourist Opportunities, and 

Revived Economies of the Gulf Coast States 
21.017 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 
87.052 Gulf Coast Ecosystem Restoration Council Oil Spill Impact Program 

I)ollar threshold used to distinouish between Type A and Type B Programs. S1.219.504 

Is the auditee a "low-risk" auditee, as defined by the Uniform Guidance? 
X Yes No 



Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2024 

Section II — Financial Statement Findines 

Iuternal Coutrol over Financial Reporting 

None 

Compliance and Other Matters 

2024-001 - Local Government Budget Act 

C'mhfition: 

The Parish may not have complied with certain provisions of the Local Govermnent Budeet Act. 

This is a repeat finding from the prior audit year. 

Criteria: 

Budget procedures applicable to the Parish are specified in state law, Louisiana Re‘ised Statute (RS) 39:1301-
1315. The pertinent part of the law and the manner in which the Parish may not have complied is as follows: 

• RS 39:1311(w) requires the Parish to amend the budget when "... Total actual expenditures and other 
uses plus projected expenditures und other u.yes for the remainder oldie year. wIthin a find, are exceeding 
the total budgeted evendituras and other uses hy five percent or more. -

 

The following fund had budget vs actual variances in over the allowable hmits as of December 31, 2024: 

 Fund 

Expenditures  

Budget Actual Variance  

$ 1,889,409 $ 2,673.022 $ (783.613) 

Percent 

Industrial Board  

( .ause: 

The cause of this condition appears to he due to year-end accounting adjustments and an oversight by 
management to arnend the abo‘e budgets before year-end. 

Effect: 

Failure to follow the precise requirements of the Local Government Budget Act resulted in the Parish possibly 
not complying with the budget laws specified in LRS 39:1301-1315. 

Recommendation: 

We recommend that the Parish connnue to monitor its financial statements reenlarly and amend the budgets as 
needed. 
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Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

ilunagemonS Response: 

See management's response dated June 19, 2025. 

Section III - Federo1 Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None 
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Taugipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2023 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Norte 

Compliance and Other Nlatters 

2023-001 - Local Government Buduet Act (repeated from prior vear) 

Condition: 
Tangipahoa Parish Government failed to amend the budgets for the Workforce - DDWG-NEG Fund; Witness 
Fee Fund; and Road Lighting District 46 Fund by an adequate amount for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2023. 

Puor Year Recommendation: 
It is recomniended that the Parish monitor its financial statements at least quarterly and amend the budget as 
needed. 

Resolution: 
Not Resolved - Finding to be repeated in the current year 

Compliance and Other Matters — Federal Financial Assistance 

N one 
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Me issa R. Covsart, CPA 
Director of Finance 

Al4
PARISH GOVERNMENT 

AMITE, LOUISIANA 70422 FAX (985) 748-7576 

OFFICE (985) 748-3211 POST OFFICE BOX 215 

 

ROBBY MILLER 
PARISH PRESIDENT 

June 19, 2025 

James, Lambert, Riggs & Associates, Inc. 
401 E. Thomas St. 
Hammond, LA 70401 

Management's Response for 2024 Financial Audit: 

2024-001 — Local Government Budget Act 

The budget deficiency noted was the result of an economic development agreement for Payment 
In Lieu of Taxes (PILOT), under which revenue is derived from expenditures made by an outside 
agency. Because these payments are contingent upon th i rd-party sales activity, we were unable to 
reliably estimate the amount during the budgeting process. 

Management will continue to monitor its financial statements regularly and amend the budget as 
needed, as recommended by the auditor. 

Sincerely, 

COUNCIL 

DARRELL SINAGRA 
DISTRICT 1 

EMILE "JOEr MAYEAUX 
DISTRICT 6 

JOHN INGRAFFIA 
DISTRICT 2 

LIONELL WELLS 
DISTRICT 7 

LOUIS "NICK" JOSEPH JOSEPH HAVIS H. G. "BUDDY" RIDGEL 
DISTRICT 3 DISTRICT 4 DISTRICT 5 

DAVID P. VIAL BRIGETIE HYDE STRADER CIEUTA'I' 
DISTRICT  8 DISTRICT 9 DIsmicr 10 



TANGIPAHOA PARISH GOVERNMENT 

STATEWIDE AGREED UPON PROCEDURES ENGAGEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 



Dennis C. James, CPA 
Paul M. Riggs, Jr., CPA 
J. Bryan Ehricht, CPA 
Megan E. Lynch, CPA 
B. Jacoh Steil), CPA 
Lauren Kimble Smith, CPA 
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JAMES 
LAMBERT RIGGS 
& ASSOCIATES, INC. 
CERLIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

www.jircpafirm.com 

CPA 
Member of 

American institute of CPAs 
Society of Louisiana CPAs 

Independent Accountants' Report on Applying 
Agreed-Upon Procedures for the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

Robby Miller, Tangipahoa Parish President 
and Members of the Parish Council 

Tangipahoa Parish Government 
Amite, Louisiana 

Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period January 1, 2024 through 
December 31, 2024. Tangipahoa Parish Government (the "Parish") management is responsible for those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs. 

The Parish has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of 
the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period 
January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures 
performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures 
performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this 
report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are detailed in Schedule "A." 

We were engaged by the Parish to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our engagement in 
accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable 
standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review 
engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional 
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Parish and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, and the 
result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any 
other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

4.4—Aolr 

vs, 

James Lambert Riggs & Associates, Inc. 
Hammond, Louisiana 

June 20, 2025 

P.O. Drawer 369 • Hamrnond, Louisiana 70404 • 985.345.6262 • Fax: 985.345.9987 



Tangipahoa Parish Government Schedule A 
Statewide Aereed-Upon Procedures Page 2 of 4 

Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers) 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash checks .r money orders (cash) are 
prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all 
deposit sites if less than 5) 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the above listed procedures. 

B. For each deposit site selected, ohtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (e.g.. 5 collection locations for 
5 deposit sites). obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if there are no 
written policies or procedures, then inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and 
observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that 

i. Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers registers; 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the ahove listed procedures. 

Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparing making bank deposits, 
unless another employee ; official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation (e.g.. pre-numbered 
receipts) to the deposit; 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the ahove listed procedures. 

in. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection entries to the general 
ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee • official is responsible for reconciling ledger postines to 
each other and to the deposit; and 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the above listed procedures. 

iv. The employee( s) responsihle for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and . or subsidiary ledgers, 
by revenue source and or custodial fund additions, is (are) not also responsible for collecting cash, unless 
another employee . official verifies the reconciliation. 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the above listed procedures. 

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who hai, e access 
to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was in force during the tiscal period. 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the ahove listed procedures. 

D. Randomlv select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank Reconciliations procedure 
#3A (seleet the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates randomly selected and 
randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). Alternative4; the practitioner may use 
a source document other than hank statements when selecting the deposit dotes fin• testing such as a cosh collection 
log, doily revenue report. receipt hook, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-mimbered. 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the above listed procedures. 



Tangipahoa Parish Government Schedule A 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Page 3 of 4 

ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts. system reports, and other related collection documentation to the 
deposit slip. 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the ahove listed procedures. 

in. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the above listed procedures. 

iv. Observe that the deposit was made within one husiness day of receipt at the collection location (within one 
week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection locanon or the deposit is less than $10() and 
the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the ahove listed procedures. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the abol, e listed procedures. 

5) Non-Pm-roll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty cash purchases)  

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the above listed procedures. 

B. For each location selected under procedure i=5A above. obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-
payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties 
(if the agency has no written policies and procedures. then inquire of employees ahout their job duties), and observe 
that job duties are properly segregated such that 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approvin2 a purchase. and placing an order 
or making the purchase; 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the ahove listed procedures. 

ii. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors; 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the abol, e listed procedures. 

in. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited frorn adding modifying vendor files, unless 
another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files; 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the ahove listed procedures. 



Tangipahoa Parish Government Schedule A 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Page 4 of 4 

iv. Either the employee .• official responsible for signing checks mails the payment ur gives the signed checks to 
an employee to mail who is not responsihle for processing payments: and 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the above listed procedures. 

v. Only employees officials authorized to sign checks approl, e the electronic disbursement (release) of funds, 
whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other 
electronic rneans. 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the above listed procedures. 

[Note: Findings related to controls that constrain the legal authority of certain public officials. (e.g., mayor of a 
Lawrason Act municipality) should not be reported.] 

C. Fur each location selected under procedure P5A above. obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population I excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that the population 
is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location. obtain supporting documentation for each 
transaction, and 

i. Observe whether the disbursement. whether by paper or electronic means, matched the related original itemized 
invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on the invoice were received by the 
entity. and 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the abol, e listed procedures. 

ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial / date, electronic logginO of 
segregation of duties tested under procedure #5B above. as applicable. 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the above listed procedures. 

D. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliatiom procedure #3A, randomly 
select 5 non-pavroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements if less than 5) and observe 
that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved hy only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign 
checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) approved by the required number of authorized signers per the entity's 
policy. Note If no electronic payments Were mad c from the Main operating account during the month selected 
the practitwner should select an alternative inonth andfor account fin• testing that does include electronic 
dishursements. 

• Results: No exceptions were noted as a result of the abol, e listed procedures. 
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